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(1) Consolidated financial statements

1. Consolidated financial statements, etc.

(i) Consolidated statements of financial position

(Millions of yen}

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Notes March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 316201
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,6, 18 ¥119,314 ¥157,091 $1,390,185
Trade and other receivables 6, 18 1,367,886 1,358,973 12,026,309
Finance lease receivables 7,18 996,438 1,054,180 9,329,026
Other financial assets 6, 18 54,830 61,601 545,141
Operating leased assets 9, 10 302,765 341,296 3,020,318
Ienqvlits;rpneerg]soaccounted for using the 8 19.267 20,254 179,238
Other property, plant and equipment 9 16,150 20,162 178,424
Other intangible assets 10 12,735 12,165 107,654
Deferred tax assets 11 21,179 17,950 158,849
Other assets 12 41,903 37,524 332,070
Total assets 2,952,471 3,081,201 27,267,265
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 6, 18 273,036 228,989 2,026,451
Borrowings and bonds 17,18 2,149,103 2,341,683 20,722,858
Other payables 6, 18 27,912 20,492 181,345
Other financial liabilities 6, 18 89,844 58,724 519,681
Income tax payable 2,684 4,494 39,769
Retirement and severance benefits 13 6,285 9,540 84,424
Deferred tax liabilities 11 1,965 1,839 16,274
Other liabilities 12 64,809 67,878 600,690
Total liabilities 2,615,641 2,733,641 24,191,513
Equity
Equity attributable to owners of the
paren
Common stock 14 9,983 9,983 88,345
Capital surplus 14 45,823 45,828 405,557
Retained earnings 14 265,152 289,745 2,564,115
ngl:nn:u'ated other comprehensive 15 18,507 4.280 37,876
Treasury stock 14 (14,333) (14,334) (126,849)
:)-?:ﬁle %gl:(ietztattributable to owners 325,223 335,503 2,969,053
Non-controlling interests 11,607 12,056 106,690
Total equity 336,830 347,559 3,075,743
Total liabilities and equity 2,952,471 3,081,201 27,267,265
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(ii) Consolidated statements of profit or loss anthprehensive income

Consolidated statements of profit or loss

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen) U.S. dollars
Notes Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016

Revenues 4,21 ¥356,291 ¥365,354 $3,233,221
Cost of sales 22 236,922 235,340 2,082,654

Gross profit 119,368 130,014 1,150,566
Selling, general and administrative
Expense 23 80,381 84,783 750,292
Other income 120 82 725
Other expenses 24 5,149 421 3,725
Share of profits of investments
accounted for using the equity met 8 1,640 1775 15,707

Income before income taxes 4 35,598 46,667 412,982
Income taxes 11 10,660 13,051 115,495

Net income 24,937 33,615 297,477
Net income attributable to:

Owners of the parent 24,140 32,694 289,327

Non-controlling interests 797 920 8,141

(Yen) (US dollars)

Earnings per share 25

Earnings per share attributable to

owners of the parent (basic and ¥206.53 ¥279.71 $2.47

diluted
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Consolidated statements of comprehensive income

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen) U.S. dollars
Notes Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Net income ¥24,937 ¥33,615 $297,477
Other comprehensive income 15
Iltems not to be reclassified to net income
Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income 966 181 1,601
|I§|er?<easurements of defined benefit 206 (3.607) (31,920)
Share of other comprehensive income
of investments accounted for using the 8 164 1 8
equity metho
Tote}I items not to be reclassified to 1,338 (3,425) (30,309)
net incom
Items that can be reclassified to
netincome
Foreign currency translation
Adjustment 10,141 (10,743) (95,070)
Cash flow hedges (2,336) 119 1,053
Total items that can be reclassified to
net incom 7,805 (10,624) (94,017)
Other comprehensive income 9,143 (14,049) (124,327)
Comprehensive income 34,080 19,565 173,141
Comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent 33,013 19,048 168,566
Non-controlling interests 1,066 516 4,566
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(iii) Consolidated statements of changes in equity

Year ended March 31, 2015
(Millions of yen)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent Total equity
Noted _ | Accumulated attributable Non“-. | equi
Oe$ Common| Capital | Retained|  other Treasury|tg ownersof |CONtrolling|Total equity
stock surplus | earnings|comprehensiy  stock | the parent interests
income
April 1, 2014 ¥9,983 ¥45,823| ¥246,364 ¥10,449|¥(14,332)| ¥298,288| ¥10,402| ¥308,690
Changes in equity
Net income 24,140 24,140 797 24,937
Other
comprehensive | 15 8,873 8,873 269 9,143
income
Comprehensive 24,140 8,873 33,013 1,066 34,080
income
Dividends to
owners of the 16 (6,078) (6,078) (6,078)
parent
Dividends to
non-controlling (141) (141)
interests
Acquisition of
treasury stock 14 1) @ 1)
Transfer to
retained earnings 18 (726) (726) (726)
Transfer from
accumulated_ othe 18 726 726 726
comprehensive
income
Increase in other
non-controlling 279 279
interests
Total changes in - —| 18788 8,147 1)| 26,934 1,204| 28,139
equity
March 31, 2015 9,983 45,823| 265,152 18,597| (14,333) 325,223 11,607 336,830
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Year ended March 31, 2016
(Millions of yen)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent Total equity
Notes . | Accumulated attributable Nor:l-_ Total equi
O€$ Common| Capital | Retained|  other Treasury ltg owners d controllingjTotal equity
stock surplus | earnings|comprehensiv  stock | the parent| interests
income
April 1, 2015 ¥9,983 ¥45,823| ¥265,152 ¥18,597|¥(14,333)| ¥325,223| ¥11,607| ¥336,830
Changes in equity
Net income 32,694 32,694 920 33,615
Other
comprehensive | 15 (13,646) (13,646) (403) | (14,049)
income
Comprehensive 32,694 (13,646) 19,048 516| 19,565
income
Dividends to
owners of the 16 (8,766) (8,766) (8,766)
parent
Dividends to
non-controlling (209) (209)
interests
Acquisition of
treasury stock 14 @ @ 1)
Sale of treasury 14 0 0 0 0
stock
Transfer to
retained earnings 18 (664) (664) (664)
Transfer from
accumulated othe| 18 664 664 664
comprehensive
income
Equity
transautons_ with 5 6) @ 142 141
non controlling
interests
Z‘;tﬁ;ha”ges in - 5| 24592  (14,316) @| 10280 449| 10,729
March 31, 2016 9,983 45,828| 289,745 4,280| (14,334)| 335,503 12,056| 347,559
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(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent Total equity
Notes _ | Accumulated attributable I\'I[on“-. Total equit
OleS Common| Capital | Retained other Treasury|tg owners of c0Ntro!ing fotal equity
stock surplus | earnings|comprehensiy  stock | the parent interests
income
April 1, 2015 $88,345 $405,513| $2,346,477 $164,575| $(126,840)| $2,878,079| $102,716| $2,980,796
Changes in equity
Net income 289,327 289,327 8,141 297,477
Other
comprehensive | 15 (120,761) (120,761) (3,566) (124,327)
income
Qomprehenswe 289,327 (120,761) 168,566 4,566 173,141
income
Dividends to
owners of the 16 (77,575) (77,575) (77,575)
parent
Dividends to
non-controlling (1,849) (1,849)
interests
Acquisition of
8 8 8
treasury stock 14 ®) ® ®
Sale of treasury 14 0 0 0 0
stock
Transfer to
. . 5,876 5,876 5,876
retained earnings 18 ( ) ( ) ( )
Transfer from
accumulateq othe 18 5,876 5,876 5,876
comprehensive
income
Equity
transacnon; with a4 53) ® 1.256 1.247
non controlling
interests
T°t"’?' changes in - 44 217,628 (126,690) (8) 90,973 3,973 94,946
equity
March 31, 2016 88,345 405,557 | 2,564,115 37,876 | (126,849) 2,969,053 106,690 3,075,743
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(iv) Consolidated statements of cash flows

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Notes Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Cash flows from operating activities 26
Net income ¥24,937 ¥33,615 $297,477
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 4 89,554 95,591 845,938
Income taxes 10,660 13,051 115,495
S o s of e nts sccounted 640 wrs s
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables (165,086) (67,682) (598,955)
(Increase) decrease in finance lease receivables (82,250) (102,011) (902,752)
Purchase of operating leased assets (124,520) (148,186) (1,311,380)
Proceeds from sale of operating leased assets 36,552 28,344 250,831
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (9,602) (41,367) (366,079)
Increa_;e (decrea}se) in payable due to collecfion o (2,824) (4,463) (39,495)
securitized receivables
Other (5,244) (5,752) (50,902)
Subtotal (229,464) (200,637) (1,775,548)
Income taxes paid (12,382) (5,734) (50,743)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (241,846) (206,372) (1,826,300)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of other property, plant and equipment (5,798) (6,180) (54,690)
Purchase of other intangible assets (2,843) (2,859) (25,300)
Zg;(;hs?tze of investments in securities and paynterisie (20,500) (6,181) (54,699)
Proceggls from 'sale and r_edemption' of investments in 32,616 8.685 76,858
securities and withdrawal of time deposits
Net payments for business combinations (7,019) - -
;Z:ﬁ:)zse of investments accounted for using thigyequ . (34) (300)
Other 102 160 1,415
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (3,443) (6,408) (56,707)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 52,191 (1,383) (12,238)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings and bonds 573,448 650,483 5,756,486
Repayments of long-term borrowings and bonds (408,841) (387,840) (3,432,212)
Proceeds from non-controlling interests 279 14 123
Dividends paid to owners of the parent (6,077) (8,764) (77,557)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (141) (209) (1,849)
P o s of corsen subsres - a9 a.s49)
cubeidanes 0 non-contaling miereets - 302 2,672
Other (1) 1) (8)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 210,858 252,425 2,233,849
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvaemnts 3,265 (1,868) (16,530)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent (31,165) 37,776 334,300
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 150,480 119,314 1,055,876
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 119,314 157,091 1,390,185
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
1. Reporting entity
Hitachi Capital Corporation (“the Company”) is a compadomiciled in Japan, and its shares are listdte Tompany’s

registered address is 3-1, Nishi Shimbashi 1-chdvtieato-ku, Tokyo, Japan. The consolidated finanstatements include the
Company, its subsidiaries and interests in its astsc The Company and its subsidiaries (colletivehe Group”) provide
financial services, including combined functionsledising, installment sales, insurance and trusbwat services, and work in
collaboration with the Hitachi Group. The Group iz following major six business segments. Thaddgusiness consists of two
business segments: Account Solution, which proviadescial services that meet the diversified neeflsustomers, and Vendor
Solution, which provides financial solutions thatehassociated vendors’ needs for sales promdftoe.Global Business consists
of four business segments based on regional dtzsih consisting of Europe, the Americas, Chind ASEAN.

The consolidated financial statements were apprdye®eiji Kawabe, President and CEO, and Yoshikahasbi, Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, on June 27, 201

2. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Grbape been prepared in accordance with IFRS issuethéoynternational
Accounting Standards Board pursuant to Article 93the “Ordinance on Terminology, Forms, and PrepamaMethods of
Consolidated Financial Statements (Ordinance oMimstry of Finance No. 28 of 1976, hereinafterereéd to as the “Ordinance
for Consolidated Financial Statements”)” as the Camipaeets the requirements for a “Specified Compaplying Designated
International Financial Reporting Standards” defiredrticle 1-2 of the Ordinance for Consolidatedi&icial Statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the groaye been prepared on a historical cost basispefaederivative financial
instruments measured at fair value, financial imsgnts measured at fair value through profit os I¢$VTPL"), financial
instruments measured at fair value through othemprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and net defined benafisets or liabilities.
The consolidated financial statements are present@dpanese yen, which is the Company’s functionaikency, and amounts are
rounded down to the nearest ¥1 million.

In the preparation of the consolidated financiatesnents in accordance with IFRS, management angeddo make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the apgitati accounting policies and the reported amouohtssets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses. Actual results may differ from trestienates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewe@ro ongoing basis. Any impact arising on the femiof accounting
estimates is recognized in the period in whichetbtimate is revised and future periods.

Information about judgments made in applying actiogrpolicies that have significant effects on #reounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements is included efdllowing notes:

- Note 3 “Summary of significant accounting polic{@3 Basis of consolidation”

- Note 3 “Summary of significant accounting polic{d$ Financial instruments” and Note 17 “Financia@truments”
- Note 3 “Summary of significant accounting polic{&3 Leasing arrangements as a lessor” and Notee#@sés”

- Note 3 “Summary of significant accounting polic{&2) Revenue recognition”

Information about uncertainties related to assuomgtiand estimates that could result in materialsdjents in subsequent fiscal
years is included in the following notes:

- Note 3 “Summary of significant accounting polic{8 Impairment of non-financial assets”

- Note 3 “Summary of significant accounting polic{83 Post-retirement benefits” and Note 13 “Emploleaefits”

- Note 3 “Summary of significant accounting policid®) Provisions, (11) Contingencies”, and Note 29 fbdtments and

contingencies”

- Note 3 “Summary of significant accounting polic{@8) Income tax” and Note 11 “Deferred tax and imegax”

The translations of Japanese yen amounts into délar amounts as of and for the year ended MadcH?816 are
included solely for the convenience of readersidatdapan and have been made at the rate of ¥1$3,tthe
approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2016h $anslations should not be construed as repratiems that the

Japanese yen amounts could be converted into Olirslat that or any other rate
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(1) Basis of consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries including consolidated structuesdities (e.g. trust accounts)

Subsidiaries including consolidated structuredtiestiare all companies and entities over whichGbmpany exercises control.

Control is achieved when the Company is exposedasrights, to variable returns from its involvemetith the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns througtpde/er over the investee.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins on the acqarsitlate when the Company obtains control overtesidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control over a subsidiaryeM#ésubsidiary applies different accounting petidghan those applied by
the Company, adjustments are made to the finartai@eents of a subsidiary to align with the Compsuagcounting policies.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidigithout a loss of control is accounted for as anitygtransaction. If a
change in the ownership interest in a subsidiasylte in a loss of control over the subsidiary, @@mpany derecognizes the
subsidiary’s assets, liabilities, non-controllimgerests, and accumulated other comprehensive iwcom

(i) Associates (companies accounted for usingetigty method)

An associate is an entity in which the Company hgsificant influence, but not control or joint coak, over the operating
and financial policies through ownership of 2096086 of the voting rights.

The Group accounts for investments in associatieg tise equity method (“equity method associates”).

The consolidated financial statements include theu@s share of profit or loss and changes in otleenprehensive income of
the equity-method associates from the date wherGthep obtains significant influence to the dateewlthe Group loses such
influence.

When equity method associates apply different attwog policies than those applied by the Groupgeseary adjustments are
made to the financial statements of equity mettestheiates to align with the Group’s accountinggies.

(2) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hamdardi deposits and short-term investments with nitiati of three
months or less which are readily convertible tchcasd subject to insignificant risk of changesaifue.

(3) Foreign currency translation
The Group’s consolidated financial statements agegnted in Japanese yen, which is the Companycsidmal currency.
(i) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translatéalthe Company’s functional currency at the exgearates at the dates of
the transactions or similar rates. Monetary asmedisliabilities denominated in foreign currenciesha end of reporting period
are translated into the Company’s functional cuyeunsing the exchange rate of the end of reportiagod, with gains or
losses arising from translation and settlementgeized in profit or loss.
(i) Translation of financial statements of overseabsidiaries
Assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiariedrareslated into Japanese yen using the exchatgatréhe end of reporting
period, and revenue and expenses are translateddpanese yen using the average exchange ratg theiyear.
Translation differences arising from translatiortfadse overseas subsidiaries are recognized in @ihgrehensive income.

(4) Financial instruments
For accounting treatments of financial instrumertihs Group has early applied IFRSFthancial Instruments (issued in
November 2009 and amended in October 2010).
(i) Non-derivative financial assets
The Group initially recognizes trade and other nedddes and non-derivative financial assets othantinvestments in
securities included in other financial assets @ndhte they occur. Investments in securities atially recognized on the date
when the Group becomes a contracting party to 8oahcial instruments.

The classification and measurement model of noivalire financial assets is summarized as follows.
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Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A financial asset that meets both of the followaagnditions is classified as a financial asset meakat amortized cost.
- The asset is held within a business model of trriBwhose objective is to collect contractual déshs, and
- When the contractual terms of the financial asset gse to cash flows on specified dates thatsalely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount taurtding.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost arallinmeasured at fair value plus directly attthlle transaction costs.
After initial recognition, the carrying amount dfet financial assets measured at amortized coatdslated using the effective

interest method, net of impairment loss, if necgssa

Impairment of financial assets measured at amariipst

The Group recognizes impairment of a financial asseasured at amortized cost when there is an tigeevidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events thatdtcurred since the initial recognition of theedsind the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the groupimdricial assets can be reliably estimated, andssasevhether impairment
exists quarterly on an ongoing basis. Objectivel@vte includes historical credit loss, delinqueincpayment, extension of
the collection period of receivables on the terhat the Group would not consider otherwise, negativaluation by external
credit agencies, insolvent, or evaluation of detating financial position and performance of tledtdr.

Impairment losses are recognized based on histoldss rate or the estimated recoverable amountutzbd in
consideration of past experience with evaluatiopaitntial risks inherent in the business enviramnirecluding commercial
practices unique to the country or region wherediator of the financial asset operates.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or lbgsdirectly reducing the carrying amount of theeassr through an
allowance for doubtful accounts. Receivables aré&tewrioff when all means of collection have beenagged and there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery. Generallyngeans of collection are considered to be extlisthen a debtor initiates
bankruptcy or liquidation procedures. If any eventurs that decreases the amount of impairmentdftss the impairment
was recognized, the decrease in impairment logs thre allowance for doubtful accounts is reverdgdugh profit or loss to
the extent that the revised carrying amount doé€xeeed the amortized cost that would have betsrrdimed at the time of

reversal had no impairment loss been recognized.

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Equity instruments that are not designated as fiishassets measured at FVTOCI at initial recognitiod debt instruments
that are not classified as financial assets medsatemortized cost are classified as financiaétasmeasured at FVTPL.

Subsequent to initial recognition, they are meabatdair value with changes in fair value recogdiin profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

The Group irrevocably designates equity instrumémds are held for the purpose of expanding itemee base through the
maintenance and enhancement of business relatimsgliih its investees as financial assets measatréd/ TOCI at initial
recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, #wuity instruments designated as financial agse@sured at FVTOCI are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair vakeognized in other comprehensive income and aclatetlin accumulated
other comprehensive income. When a financial asssdsured at FVTOCI is derecognized, the accumulatedunt in

accumulated other comprehensive income is dirdctiysferred to retained earnings and not recognizegrofit or loss.
Dividends from equity instruments designated aarfaial assets measured at FVTOCI are recognizedbfit pr loss unless

they clearly represent a return of the investment.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset whendhtactual rights to receive cash flows from theeafiave expired, or
when the Group has transferred its contractualsigh receive cash flows from the financial asgeta transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ovghgy of the financial asset are transferred. Angrigst in such transferred
financial asset created or retained by the Groupdsgnized as a separate asset or liability.

When the Group has transferred financial assetsdither transferred nor retained substantiallpfthe risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset, and retained control tive asset, the Group continues to recognizer#iresferred assets to the
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extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. lattkkase, the Group also recognizes associatettiehi

(ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group has trade and other payables, borrowamgks bonds, and non-derivative financial liabilitiegluded in other
financial liabilities and initially recognizes theat fair value less any directly attributable tr@ect®n costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at amortized casguke effective interest method.

Debt securities issued by the Group are initialgagnized on the issue date. All other financibilities are recognized on
the transaction date when the Group becomes aambnél party to the financial instruments.

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities whieyt are extinguished, i.e., when its contractudigation is performed or

discharged, cancelled or expired.

(iii) Derivative financial instruments and hedgeagnting

With regard to derivative transactions, the Groapasates the execution and approval functionsfferdint departments to
meet internal control requirements, and manages camdiucts derivative transactions in accordancé whie Group risk
management regulations.

The Group has documented the risk management pisicdyding the objective and strategy for usingiwive financial
instruments as prescribed by the regulation. Irtiagd an assessment is made at the inceptionheidge and periodically on an
ongoing basis as to whether the derivative uséigisly effective in offsetting changes in fair valor future cash flows of the
hedged items.

Derivatives that meet the criteria for hedge actiogn

The Group enters into derivative transactions tdgeeexposures to fluctuations in fair value, indemates and foreign
exchange rates. The primary derivatives used byGtmip are interest rate swaps, currency swapsf@ethn exchange
forward contracts. Derivatives used as hedgingunstnts are initially recognized at fair value,hwitlated transaction costs
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsegteemitial recognition, derivatives are measuegdair value, with changes

in fair value accounted for as follows:

- Fair value hedges
Gains or losses arising from remeasurements ofaterés used as hedging instruments at fair vateerecognized in
profit or loss. Gains or losses on hedged itenmsbatable to the hedged risk are recognized inipmfloss and is also

recorded as part of the carrying amount of the addgm.

- Cash flow hedges

When derivatives are designated as hedging institem® hedge exposures to fluctuations in cash sflokat are
attributable to a particular risk associated wehagnized assets or liabilities, the effective iparbf gains or losses on the
derivatives is recognized in other comprehensivenme. The gain or loss recognized in other commskie income is
transferred to profit or loss in the same line itesrithe hedged item in the consolidated statenoérsmprehensive income
in the period when cash flows from the hedged iédfect profit or loss. Any ineffective portion ohanges in fair value of
derivatives is recognized immediately in profitiass.

When hedge accounting is terminated, the amountqarsly recognized in other comprehensive inconmeaias until the
forecast transaction, which is the hedged itenecsdf profit or loss. When the forecast transadsamo longer expected to

occur, the amount is recognized immediately inipafloss.
When fair value and cash flow hedge transactiontonger meet the criteria for hedge accounting, wtie hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exedj or when its designation as a hedge is revaalication of hedge

accounting is discontinued prospectively.

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedgeounting

The Group has derivatives for hedging purposesdbatot meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Almgnges in fair value
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of these derivatives are recognized immediatefyrafit or loss.

(iv) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts entered into by tloeiGare those contracts that require a paymeln¢ tmade to reimburse the
holder for a loss incurred because the specifidoddails to make a payment when due in accordavittethe terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are r@zed initially at fair value, adjusted for transan costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. &ulent to initial recognition, the liability is meaed at the higher of the amount
of initial measurement net of accumulated amoiitratind the best estimate of the cash outflow reduio settle the present
obligation that is likely to arise from the requasfulfill the financial guarantee in the contract

(v) Offsetting financial assets and financial lilgs

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andrteeamount is reported in the consolidated statésnef financial position,
only if there is a currently enforceable legal tighset off the recognized amounts and there igtention to settle on a net basis
or to realize the assets and settle the liabilgiesiltaneously.

(5) Leasing arrangements as a lessor
The Group leases various assets to customers assifigds the contracts as either finance or opeyd@ases based on the
terms and conditions of the arrangements. A |dzesettansfers substantially all the risks and relwaf ownership of the asset to
a lessee is classified as a finance lease. Leaseacts not classified as finance leases are @esis operating leases.

Finance leases

Finance lease assets mainly comprise informatitaie® equipment, office equipment, and industriplipment.

Finance lease receivables are initially recogniaethe inception date at the amount of the netsieent in the finance
lease calculated as the sum of the future minineamd payments of the lessee and the unguarantiédalevalue receivable
discounted at an interest rate implicit in the éeaBhe unguaranteed residual value is estimatedh e lease contract is
entered into as the recoverable amount from dispdghe assets upon expiration of the lease téamsed on market value of
secondhand assets, an estimate for the timingearad &f obsolescence, and the recovered amounts dnmilar assets in the
past. An interest rate implicit in the lease is thie that causes the net investment in the finbrase to be equal to the sum of
the fair value of the leased asset and any irdifalct costs of the lessor.

Operating leases

The Group has adopted the cost model for measutesheaperating leases, under which operating leasegresented at
cost less any accumulated depreciation and acctedulinpairment losses. Operating leased assetslymeamprises
transportation equipment, information-related emept, and software, but do not include intangildsets with indefinite
useful lives. The residual value of operating leaassets is determined based on market value ohdkand assets, an
estimate for the timing and level of obsolescenoe, the recovered amounts from similar assetseipdst.

Operating leased assets are depreciated usingrdighsline method over the lease term (mainlyeéhto seven years).
Depreciation expense on operating leased assetdusled in cost of sales.

Lease revenue recognition is described in Notewrii®ary of significant accounting policies (12) Rewe recognition.”

(6) Other property, plant and equipment

The Group has adopted the cost model for measuteoherther property, plant and equipment, underciwtother property,
plant and equipment are presented at cost lesa@umulated depreciation and accumulated impairhosses. Cost includes
expenses directly related to purchase the assetsarainitial estimate of the cost to dismantlepdse and restore to the original
state.

Depreciation expense is calculated based on theedaple amount. The depreciable amount is the @iote asset less any
residual value. Depreciation expense is recognired straight-line basis in profit or loss over &@stimated useful life of each
component of other property, plant and equipment.
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Other property, plant and equipment comprises ogeduassets and construction in progress, and ogah-assets mainly
comprise machinery. The major estimated usefubffmachinery at March 31, 2015 and 2016 is 20stear

The estimated useful life and the method of deptixi are reviewed at the end of each fiscal yadrany changes will be
applied prospectively as changes in accountingnessis.

(7) Other intangible assets
(i) Goodwill
Goodwill is presented at cost less any accumulatpdirment losses.
(i) Other intangible assets
The Group has adopted the cost model for measuteshémtangible assets, and intangible assets datfmite useful lives
are presented at cost less any accumulated antioizand accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization expense is calculated based on theuataf cost less any residual value. Amortizatispense on assets with
definite useful lives is recognized in profit osfon a straight-line basis.
Other intangible assets mainly comprise softwarénfiernal use, whose estimated useful life at Ma&t, 2015 and 2016 is
mainly five years.
The estimated useful life and the method of amatitn are reviewed at the end of each fiscal yadramy changes will be
applied prospectively as changes in accountingnassis.

(8) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there is an indicétamrah asset may be impaired, and if there is mgligation that the carrying
amount of such asset may not be recoverable dughdaages in certain events or circumstances, theiGperforms an
impairment test. For intangible assets with indefimseful lives and goodwill, the Group perfornmsimpairment test annually,
mainly in the fourth quarter, regardless of anyidaton of impairment, by estimating the recoveeahimount for each cash-
generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. iRpairment testing, assets are grouped togethi®r the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cdkiwis that are largely independent of cash infl@fisther assets or CGUs.

The Group measures the recoverable amount of @ @sa CGU as the higher of fair value or valus lessts of disposal and
value in use. The fair value is calculated usirgitttome approach (present value method) baseleocutrent market price or
the estimated future cash flows generated fromamsksale of such asset. When the carrying amouah afsset allocated to a
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairmestiforecognized on the asset belonging to such CGU.

For assets excluding goodwill, the recoverable arhofithe asset or CGU is estimated if there isnaiication that previously
recognized impairment losses no longer exist oeltdecreased due to material changes in assumptmtsto determine the
recoverable amount. If the calculated recoverabh®umt exceeds the carrying amount of the asset dd,GGpreviously
recognized impairment loss is reversed to the éxtteat the carrying amount of the asset does nogexk the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of deprediakiad no impairment loss been recognized for $ketan prior years.

(9) Post-retirement benefits

The present value of defined benefit obligationd sztirement benefit expenses are determined ukmgrojected unit credit
method.

The present value of defined benefit obligationd &ir value of plan assets are remeasured atritieokeach fiscal year.
Actuarial gains and losses and changes in fairevalfi plan assets, excluding interest income, apogmized in other
comprehensive income and are not subsequentlyssifial into retained earnings. Past service costslting from plan
amendments are recognized in profit or loss astiadu

The amount of the present value of defined bemddfitgations, net of fair value of plan assets, isspnted as net defined
benefit liability or asset in the consolidateatetents of financial position.

(10) Provisions
In accordance with provisions of IAS Brovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, provisions are recognized at
the best estimate of the amount required to s#tdepresent obligation when the Group has a preskiigation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it dpble that an outflow of resources embodying econdenefits will be required
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to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate loe made of the amount of the obligation.

When the time to settle an obligation is expectede long and the effect of the time value of moisegonsidered material, a
provision is measured based on the present valtleeaéxpected payment for settlement. The pressoevs calculated using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects the time vaifimoney and the risks specific to the obligation.

(11) Contingencies
In accordance with provisions of IAS Ffovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the Group discloses an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefitgt b not probable to occur at the end of reporpegod as contingent
liabilities in Note 29 “Commitments and contingersi¢excluding contingencies recognized as provisjomhen such outflow
cannot be confirmed as the present obligationeattid of reporting period or when it does not ntkeetrecognition criteria for
provisions, unless the possibility of any outflofwesources embodying economic benefits in settieriseremote.

(12) Revenue recognition
Leases

Revenue from finance lease transactions is recogrigeallocating unearned finance income, whichhis difference
between the gross investment in a finance leas¢handet investment in a finance lease, over thgeldéerm so as to reflect an
implicit interest rate. The increase in the ungotad residual value due to the passage of timecignized as income over
the lease term so as to reflect an implicit interate.

Revenue under operating lease contracts is recaboizr the lease term on a straight-line basigamanother systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattemhiich the benefit of use derived from the leasssktis diminished. Proceeds
from sale of lease property are recognized whenifgignt risks and economic value of ownership loé fproperty are
transferred to the buyer, the Group retains neitbatinuing involvement nor effective control otke property, the amount of
revenue and the costs incurred in respect of #res#iction can be measured reliably, and it is fnlebthat the economic
benefits which is the consideration for the tratisacwill flow to the Group. Generally, revenue riscognized when the
delivery of the property to the buyer is complete.

Revenue on installment sales

The amount equivalent to interest income is recogghias revenue using the effective interest methaghch fiscal year.
The effective interest rate is the rate that eyadiscounts the estimated future cash receipts theerexpected term of the
installment sales to the net carrying amount ofitistaliment sales receivable.

(13) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and defeswsebt These are recognized in profit or loss, exioeghose arising from
business combinations or those recognized eithectti in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the amount expected to be paid tm{ered from) the taxation authorities in respéd¢he taxable profit or loss
for the current period, calculated using the taesahat are enacted or substantially enactedeateial of reporting period,
adjusted for the amount of income tax payable (recble) in prior years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaadtemporary differences between the carrying answfh assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statements of fioiah position and their tax bases. Deferred taxetasand liabilities are not
recognized when the temporary differences arise frotial recognition of goodwill, when the tempoyalifferences arise from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability &ntransaction that is not a business combinatiah) @t the time of the transaction,
affect neither the accounting profit nor taxablefipror loss, and, in respect of taxable tempordifferences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, wheetirtting of the reversal of the temporary differencan be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will neferse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurdidestiax rates that are expected to apply to tkebta profit in the fiscal year
when the assets is realized or the liability iglsgt Any impact on deferred tax assets and ligddliof a change in tax rates is
recognized in profit or loss and other comprehengicome in the fiscal year in which the law regagdthe tax rate change is

enacted.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for any unaselbsses, tax credits and deductible temporafgréifices to the extent that
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it is probable that taxable profit will be availabhgainst which unused tax losses, tax credits detlictible temporary
differences can be utilized. The carrying amoundeferred tax assets is reviewed at each end oftieg period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sigfit taxable profit will be available to allow thenefits to be realized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiesddfset if a legally enforceable right exists & eff current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and income taxes are levigdhe same taxation authority on the same taxeaxiéy.

(14) Consumption taxes

Consumption taxes that are withheld from customedspaid to the tax authorities are excluded fromenees, cost of sales
and expenses in the consolidated statements df prdéss.

(15) Earnings per share (“EPS”")
Basic EPS amounts attributable to owners of thenpane calculated using the weighted average nuwibeommon stocks,
and diluted EPS amounts attributable to ownerdefgarent are calculated using the sum of the geemamber of common
stocks and the number of shares that would bedssueonversion of dilutive securities.

(16) Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using theisiion method. The cost of an acquisition is suead as the sum of the
consideration transferred measured at the acquisdate fair value and the amount of any non-cdlimgointerests in the
acquiree. The Company measures the non-controltitegests in the acquiree at the proportionate sbfatke non-controlling
interests in the fair value of the acquiree’s idfaiile net assets. Acquisition-related costs apeased as incurred.

(17) New accounting standards issued but not yeltexp
Major new standards or amendments to standardhévat been issued up to the approval date of theotidated financial
statements but not applied by the Company as of Mat¢ 2016 are as follows. The Group is currentiglgating the potential
impact of applying these on its financial positaomd operating results.

Effective date
Standard Name (First year of
application

&N

Year to be applie

by the Group Summary

Amendment to hedge accounting
(amended in November 2013)
amendment to classification and

. . measurement of financial
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments January 1, 2018 TBD instruments, and introduction of
expected loss impairment model
for financial assets (amended (in

July 2014
Amendment to accounting
IFRS 15 \f{vﬁxegﬂsetonjre?;n Contracts January 1, 2018 TBD treatment and disclosure for
revenue recognitic
IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2014 TBD Amendment to EasmInting
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4. Segment information
(1) Reportable segments

Reportable segments of the Group are componentedBtoup for which separate financial informatisravailable that are
reviewed by the Board of Directors regularly to mdkeisions regarding the allocation of managemestaurces and evaluation
of operating performance.

The Group classifies its reportable segments baseatea into Japan and Global. The Group furthessifies Japan into two
segments (“Account Solution” and “Vendor Solutiordpd Global into four segments (Europe, the Ameridcahina, and
ASEAN) in view of its business model and customergrovide solutions, resulting in six reportaldgments in total.

The respective services and customers by reporsagiment are described below:

(1) Account Solution (Japan)

The Group provides solutions to meet various neédsistomers such as enterprises, government anétipal offices,
agricultural firms and medical services organizaitby combining diverse functions such as leadaworing, installments,
insurance and trust account services, and throaligiboration with partners including the Hitachio@p.

(2) Vendor Solution (Japan)
The Group provides solutions to meet associatedarshneeds including sales promotion utilizingfitencial services,
mainly related to leasing and installments.

(3) Europe, the Americas, China, and ASEAN
The Group provides solutions to customers and venitioeach area utilizing its wide range of finahdervices and in
collaboration with partners including the Hitachio@p.

Segment information for the years ended March 8152and 2016 is as follows.

Year ended March 31, 2015

(Millions of yen

Reportable segments
Japan Consolidate
The . Others| Total | Adjustmentsstatement of
Account | Vendor | EUrOPE | o ool China | ASEAN Total profit or loss
Solution | Solution

Revenues
External customers | ¥186,717¥20,811| ¥99,615| ¥8,674| ¥15,855| ¥11,039|¥342,774/¥14,161 ¥356,934 ¥(644) ¥356,291
Intersegment 1,387 54 — — — — 1,441| 3,052 4,494 (4,494) —
Total 188,164/ 20,865| 99,615| 8,674 15855| 11,039| 344,215 17,214 361,430 (5,138)| 356,291
income before Incomf 14676|  3491| 14849| 2222| 559 28| 41064| 2,222 43286  (7,688) 35598
Interest expenses 8,699 2,083| 7,198| 1,407| 4,353| 3,208| 26,951| 1,942 28,893 (4,926) 23,967
Depreciation and 57,620 2,981| 24,713 128 242| 1,280| 86,967| 1,368 88,336 1,218 89,554

amortizatiol

(Notes)

1. Cthersinclude business segments not included in any o#partable segments and include companies transfgrits business
structure through business development and rezatiabin.

2. Adjustment of income before income taxes, adjest of interest expenses, and adjustment of digpiat and amortization
represent company-wide expense that is not allddatany reportable segments and the differencedsst the amount
allocated to reportable segments and the actualianiacurred.

The company-wide expense mainly comprises genathhdministrative expenses that are not allocatedgdortable segments.

3. The Group does not allocate assets and liasilit the reportable segments used by the chiefibpg decision maker.

4. Intersegment transactions are executed on &n kmgth basis.
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Year ended March 31, 2016
(Millions of yen

Reportable segments
Japan Consolidate
The . Others| Total | Adjustmentsstatement of
Accountl Vendor | EUrope Americas China | ASEAN| Total profit or loss
Solution| Solution
Revenues
External customers |¥195,570| ¥19,358| ¥07,814| ¥12,823| ¥16,984| ¥11,082| ¥354,534| ¥12,232 ¥366,766 ¥(1,411)| ¥365,354
Intersegment 1,396 63 — — — — 1,460 | 2,316 3,776 (3,776) —
Total 196,967| 19.421| 97,814| 12,823| 16,984| 11,982| 355994| 14,548 370,542 (5.188) 365,354
lg)c(g'sne before income | 14 540 2557 | 17,398 3,534 7,193 245 | 50318| 10214 51532 (4,865) 46,667
Interest expenses 7,677 2,115 8,460 2,220 4,952 3619| 20046| 1,495 30,542 (4,010) 26,532
Depreciation and 63,180 1,852 | 25345 304 362 2326| 93371| 1,171 94543 1,048 95,501
amortization
(Thousands of U.S. dolla
Reportable segments
Japan Consolidate
The _ Others| Total | Adjustmentsstatement of
Account | Vendor | EUrOPe | A ericas| China | ASEAN Total profit or loss
Solution | Solution
Revenues
External customers |$1,730,707[$171,300 | $865,610| $113,477| $150,300| $106,035| $3,137,469| $108,247 $3,245,714  $(12,486)| $3,233,221
Intersegment 12,353 557 - - - - 12,020| 20,495 33415 (33,419 -
Total 1,743,070| 171,867| 865610| 113477| 150,300| 106,035| 3,150,389| 128,743 3,279,133  (45911) 3,233,221
ig)c(g;ne before income | 121 575| 22608| 153.964| 31.274| 63,654 2,168|  445292| 10743 456,035 (43,053 412,982
Interest expenses 67,038| 18716| 74:867| 19646| 43823| 32,026| 257,044| 13,230 270,283  (35.486) (234,796)
Depreciation and 559,115 16,389 | 224,292 2,690 3203| 20584 826202| 10,362 836,663 9,274 845,938
amortization
(Notes)

1. Othersinclude business segments not included in any odpartable segments and include companies transfgrits business
structure through business development and rezatiabin.

2. Adjustment of income before income taxes, adjest of interest expenses, and adjustment of digpicat and amortization
represent company-wide expense that is not allddatany reportable segments and the differencedsat the amount allocated
to reportable segments and the actual amount edurr
The company-wide expense mainly comprises genathhdministrative expenses that are not allocatedgortable segments.

3. The Group does not allocate assets and liasilit the reportable segments used by the chiehtipg decision maker.

4. Intersegment transactions are executed on as kmgth basis.

(2) Geographic information
Revenues attributed to geographic areas based daddion of the customers for the years ended M&d; 2015 and 2016

are as follows.

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen) U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31, 2015Year ended March 31, 20L&ear ended March 31, 2016
Japan ¥221,136 ¥225,750 $1,997,787
Europe and the Americas 108,290 110,637 979,088
Asia 26,864 28,967 256,345
Total 356,291 365,354 3,233,221
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As of March 31, 2015 and 2016, balances of propptant and equipment and intangible assets fdn gaographic area are

as follows.

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016

Japan ¥213,008 ¥237,731 $2,103,814
Europe and the Americas 110,62 118,776 1,051,115
Asia 8,020 17,117 151,477
Total 331,651 373,624 3,306,407

(3) Customer information
For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016, th&i@ concentration of revenue to a specific custom
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5. Cash and cash equivalents

The components of cash and cash equivalents do@ss.

(Millions of yen

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2016

Cash on hand and at banks ¥46,701 ¥38,389 $339,725
Related company deposits 72,613 118,701 1,050,451
Cash and cash equivalents 119,314 157,091 1,390,185

(Notes)

1. Cash on hand and at banks do not include time deposits with maturities oveet months.

2. Related company deposits are funds deposited through participation in aredimed cash management system conducted by the

parent company, Hitachi, Ltd., for the Hitachi Goozompanies.

6. Components of financial assets and liabilitiepésiod up to collection or settlement

The Components of financial assets and liabilitiepériod up to collection or settlement are asofuf.

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Period up to collection or Period up to collection or Period up to collection o
settlement settlement settlement
Total Total Total
Within 12 Over 12 Within 12 Over 12 Within 12 Over 12
months months months months months months
Financial assets
Cash and cash
cquivalents ¥119,314 VA ¥119,314|  ¥157,001 VA ¥157,001| $1,390,185 $— | $1,390,185
Ierggﬁl:;gsmhe’ 678,153 689,733| 1,367,886 703,004| 655968 1,358973| 6,221,274| 5,805,026 12,026,309
Other financial asset 31,925 22,904 54,830 30,747 30,854 61,601 272,097| 273,044| 545141
Total financial assets 820,343 712,637| 1,542,031 890,843 686,823| 1,577,666 7,883,566| 6,078,079| 13,961,646
Financial liabilities
;;i‘gilz’;d other 238,771 34,264 273,036 194.642| 34,346 228,989| 1,722,495 303,946| 2,026,451
Other payables 25,308 2,608 27,912 19,465 1,026 20,492 172,256 9,079| 181,345
ggﬁzigganmal 49,797 40,047 89,844 31,034 27,690 58,724 274,637| 245044| 519,681
Total financial liabilities 313,873 76,919 390,792 245,142 63,063 308,205 2,169,398| 558,079| 2,727,477

See Note 7 “Leases” for componentg-aiance |ease receivables by period up to collection.

See Note 17 “Financial instruments” for componerit8orrowings and bonds by period up to settlement
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7. Leases

Gross investment in leases and present value pecesf minimum lease payments receivable undanfie leases at March
31, 2015 and 2016 are as follows.

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands ¢
U.S. dollars

(Millions of yen}

(Thousauls o
U.S. dollars

Gross investments in leases Present value of mmitease payments receivable
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2016/ March 31, 2015| March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Within 1 year ¥325,368 ¥345,956 $3,061,557 ¥301,386 ¥330,202 $2,922,141
Qﬂer 1 year 650,751 696,070 6,159,911 573,346 605,552 5,358,867
ut not mor
yecgf than 5 118,576 115,813 1,024,893 95,531 87,561 774,876
Total 1,094,696 1,157,840 10,246,371 970,264 1,023,316 9,055,893
Unearned
finance ircome (88,327) (97,236) (860,495)
Net investment 1,006,368 1,060,604 9,385,876
in finance leas
Unguaranteed
re s?du al valu (36,104) (37,288) (329,982)
Present value of
minimum lease
payments 970,264 1,023,316 9,055,893
receivabl

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, the accumulated all@edor uncollectible minimum lease payments reddevamounted to
¥9,930 million, and ¥6,423 million ($56,840 thoudprespectively.

Future minimum lease payments receivable undercaocellable operating leases at March 31, 2015Mardh 31, 2016 are

as follows.
(Thousands «
(Millions of yen} U.S. dollars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016

Within 1 year ¥52,911 ¥55,768 $493,522
After 1 year but not more 69,003 62.565 553,672

than 5 yeal
More than 5 years 1,633 2,000 17,699
Total 123,547 120,335 1,064,911

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, there was no signifiGgreement with the legal form of a lease thatrditi in substance,

involve a lease.
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8. Investments accounted for using the equity ntetho
At March 31, 2015 and 2016, the following investihseim associates that are not individually sigaificand accounted for

using the equity method are included in the codsatdid financial statements.
(Thousands of

(Millions of yen, U.S. dollars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Carrying amount of investments ¥19,267 ¥20,254 $179,238

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen, U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31, 2016 Year ended March 31, 2016 Year ended March 31, 2016
Net income ¥1,640 ¥1,775 $15,707
Other comprehensive income 164 1 8
Total comprehensive income 1,806 1,776 15.71¢
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9. Property, plant and equipment
The changes in net carrying amount, gross car@mngunt, accumulated depreciation and accumulatpdiiment losses of

property, plant and equipment are as follows.
(Millions of yen)

Operating leased own-used alssetSConstruction in Total
assets progress

Net carrying amount

April 1, 2014 ¥233,386 ¥7,098 ¥4,199 ¥244,683
Additions 110,005 1,451 4,346 115,804
Sales or disposals (34,58R) (561) — (35,143)
Depreciation (69,716) (1,269) — (70,985)
Reversal of impairment losses 2,8P9 — — 2,829
Acquisitions through business combinatigns 845 295 — 1,140
Exchange differences 3,881 177 0 4,058
Transfers and other 12,196 7,837 (7,425) 12,608

March 31, 2015 258,845 15,029 1,120 274,996
Additions 126,890 4,139 2,041 133,070
Sales or disposals (22,12B) (244) Q) (22,369)
Depreciation (74,978) (1,640) — (76,619)
Impairment losses (31) (29) — (60)
Reversal of impairment losses 1B1 — — 181
Exchange differences (11,55P) (260) (66) (11,876)
Transfers and other 16,687 790 (716) 16,761

March 31, 2016 293,920 17,784 2,377 314,082

(Thousands (U.S. dollars

March 31, 2015 $2,290,663 $133,000 $9,911 $2,433,592
Additions 1,122,920 36,628 18,061 1,177,610
Sales or disposals (195,778) (2,159) (8) (197,955)
Depreciation (663,522) (14,513) — (678,044)
Impairment losses (274) (256) — (530)
Reversal of impairment losses 1,61 — — 1,601
Exchange differences (102,21R) (2,300) (584) (105,097)
Transfers and other 147,672 6,991 (6,336) 148,327

March 31, 2016 2,601,061 157,380 21,035 2,779,486

The amount recognized as depreciation and revefsahpairment losses for the year ended March l52was ¥68,155
million, with ¥67,281 million included ifCost of sales and ¥874 million inSdling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss. The n&aleof impairment loss recognized is includedhia Europe segment.

The amount recognized as depreciation, impairmesgels and reversal of impairment losses for the gieded March 31,
2016 was ¥76,499 million ($676,982 thousand), Wit5,463 million ($667,814 thousand) includedQaost of sales, ¥1,006
million ($8,902 thousand) iBelling, general and administrative expenses and ¥29 million ($256 thousand) @ther expenses in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss. linmpant losses and the reversal of impairment losseggnized are included
mainly in the ASEAN segment and the Europe segment.

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, the amount of contectwmmitments for the acquisition of operatingsksh assets were
¥21,416 million and ¥44,696 million ($395,539 thand), respectively.
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(Millions of yen)

Operating leased

Construction in

rs)

assets Own-used assets progress Total
Gross carrying amount
April 1, 2014 ¥1,434,679 ¥11,353 ¥4,199 ¥1,450,232
March 31, 2015 1,331,478 19,679 1,120 1,352,278
March 31, 2016 1,258,226 23,084 2,377 1,283,689
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
April 1, 2014 1,201,293 4,255 — 1,205,548
March 31, 2015 1,072,632 4,649 — 1,077,281
March 31, 2016 964,306 5,300 — 969,606
(Thousands of U.S. dollal
Operggggt;eased Own-used assetscogsrg;rcégjsn in Total
Gross carrying amount
March 31, 2016 $11,134,743 $204,283 $21,035 $11,360,079
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
March 31, 2016 8,533,681 46,902 — 8,580,584

10 Intangible assets

(1) Net carrying amount, gross carrying amountyaudated amortization and accumulated impairmesgde of intangible assets

The changes in net carrying amount, gross carrgimgunt, accumulated amortization and accumulatgaimment losses of

intangible assets are as follows.

(Millions of yen)

Operggggt;easeé isncizmzeu?é Goodwill Other Total

Net carrying amount

April 1, 2014 ¥40,241 ¥5,611 ¥2,786 ¥681 ¥49,321
Additions 19,194 1,349 — 1,494 22,038
Amortization (15,600 (2,747) — (221) (18,568)
Impairment losses — — (475) (1,713) (2,188)
Disposals (1,388 (22) — 0) (1,409)
busmess combinato - 3 3,014 327 4,245
Exchange differences 0 34 843 21 901
Transfers and other 1,471 584 — 259 2,316

March 31, 2015 43,919 4,815 7,069 850 56,655
Additions 20,471 1,854 — 1,005 23,331
Amortization (16,897 (2,001) — (73) (18,972)
Impairment losses — (34) — Q) (36)
Disposals (1,340 (162) — (5) (1,508)
Exchange differences (@) (55) (510) (30) (596)
Transfers and other 1,243 514 — (1,069) 668

March 31, 2016 47,376 4,930 6,559 676 59,542

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

March 31, 2015 $388,6683 $42,610 $62,557 $7,522 $501,371
Additions 181,159 16,407 — 8,893 206,469
Amortization (149,530 (17,707) — (646) (167,893)
Impairment losses - (300) - (8) (318)
Disposals (11,858 (1,433) - (44) (13,345)
Exchange differences (@) (486) (4,513) (265) (5,274)
Transfers and other 10,823 4,548 — (9,460) 5,911

March 31, 2016 419,256 43,628 58,044 5,982 526,920
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The amount recognized as amortization and impairnosses for the year ended March 31, 2015 was722Z0pillion, with
¥15,600 million included irCost of sales, ¥2,968 million inSelling, general and administrative expenses, and ¥2,188 million in
Other expensesin the consolidated statements of profit or loss.

The amount recognized as amortization and impaitnesses for the year ended March 31, 2016 was0889million
($168,212 thousand), with ¥16,897 million ($149,3806usand) included ifost of sales, ¥2,074 million ($18,353 thousand) in
Sdling, general and administrative expenses, and ¥36 million ($318 thousand) @ther expenses in the consolidated statements

of profit or loss.
(Millions of yen)

Operating leased Software for

assets internal use Goodwill Other Total

Gross carrying amount

April 1, 2014 ¥276,373 ¥37,067 ¥4,599 ¥917 ¥318,957
March 31, 2015 262,218 38,751 9,377 1,351 311,698
March 31, 2016 251,32p 38,016 8,705 1,291 299,342
Accumulated amortization

and impairment losses

April 1, 2014 236,131 31,456 1,812 235 269,636
March 31, 2015 218,298 33,936 2,307 500 255,043
March 31, 2016 203,958 33,085 2,145 615 239,800

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Operating leased Software for

assets internal use Goodwill Other Total

Gross carrying amount
March 31, 2016 $2,224,150 $336,424 $77,035 $11,424 $2,649,044

Accumulated amortization
and impairment losses

March 31, 2016 1,804,893 292,787 18,982 5,442 2,122,123

(2) Impairment losses
(i) Allocation of goodwill to a cash generating ini

Goodwill arising from a business combination i®edited on the acquisition date to the CGU that jieeted to benefit from
the business combination.

At March 31, 2016, significant goodwill allocatenl €CGUs relates to Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC with thergeg amount of
¥2,006 million ($17,752 thousand) (¥2,206 millionMarch 31, 2015) and CLE Canadian Leasing Enterprigd. with the
carrying amount of ¥4,319 million ($38,221 thousaf¥d,606 million at March 31, 2015).

The recoverable amount of each CGU is calculatetjusilue in use, which is calculated by discounéstimated future cash
flows based on the business plan approved by tmagesnent at a pre-tax rate (12.5% to 14.8%). Tlsenbss plan is drawn up
based on past experiences using external and ahieformation, and cash flows beyond the periodeced by the business plan
(generally five years) are estimated consideringt fimancial results and average growth rates, etpected in respective
markets.

The Company believes that any reasonably possitdagas in the key assumptions used in calculatiothefrecoverable
amount (e.g. discount rate and average growth aageless likely to cause the carrying amount teed value in use.

(i) Impairment of other intangible assets

For the year ended March 31, 2015, an impairmesd [on other intangible assets in the amount of 181 illion was
recognized and included dther expensesin the consolidated statements of profit or logssTs due to a write-down of part of a
previously incurred development cost of the in-leoosre system that is no longer expected to be inste future as a result of
partial changes in the development plan. The reafe amount of the core system is calculated ugithge in use, but value in
use of the part that is not expected to be us#ukifuture is estimated to have no value in use.
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11. Deferred taxes and income taxes
The components of income taxes recognized in tmsalmated statements of profit or loss and defetaexes recognized in

the consolidated statements of comprehensive ineremas follows.

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen} U.S. dollars
Year ended Year ended Year Ended
March 31, 201 March 31, 201 March 31, 201
Income taxes
Current ¥9,133 ¥8,094 $71,628
Deferred 1,527 4,957 43,867
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 162 3,978 35,203
Changes in unrecognized temporary differences (121) 11 97
Qgﬁgéwfps rgtfe gﬁgred tax assets and liagslitdue to 1811 967 8557
Total 10,660 13,051 115,495
Deferred taxes recognized in the consolidated retés of
compiehensive incor
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI 279 67 592
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 171 (1,671) (14,787)
Cash flow hedges (695) 68 601
Total (244) (1,536) (13,592)

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are dutijea number of taxes based on taxable incoméydimg corporate
income tax at the tax rate of 23.9%, corporatebithat tax at rates from 12.9% to 20.6% and busirias and special local
corporate tax at rates from 4.9% to 10.1%.

“Act on Partial Amendment of the Income Tax Act"dfANo. 9 of 2015) and “Act on Partial Amendmentité Local Tax Act”
(Act No. 2 of 2015) were promulgated on March 3Q1%2 and it was decided that corporate tax ratasdvbe changed in a
consolidated fiscal year starting on or after Afti2015. As a result, the effective statutoryr@e used for calculating deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities was charfgmd 35.6% at the end of the previous fiscal y@aB3.1% pertaining to
temporary differences that were expected to beimditad in the consolidated fiscal year startingrfrépril 1, 2015, and to
32.3% pertaining to temporary differences that vexjgected to be eliminated in the consolidatedafigear starting from April 1,
2016.

As a result, the aggregated statutory tax rateg @pproximately 35.6% and 33.1% for the years emdadth 31, 2015 and
2016, respectively.

“Act on Partial Amendment of the Income Tax Act”dfANo. 15 of 2016) and “Act on Partial Amendmentttoé Local Tax
Act” (Act No. 13 of 2016) were enacted in the Diet March 29, 2016, and the effective statutoryrte used for calculating
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiesitgd to those that will be eliminated on or afégril 1, 2016) has been changed
from 32.3% to 30.9% pertaining to those that aggeeted to be recovered or paid during the periogh fApril 1, 2016 to March
31, 2018, and to 30.6% pertaining to those thaeapected to be recovered or paid on or after Apri018.

The Company and its certain subsidiaries have apfiiie consolidated tax system.

The reconciliations between the statutory incomeates and the effective income tax rates arelémafs:

(%)
Year ended March 31, 2015 Year ended March 31, 2016

Statutory income tax rates 35.6 331
Net gain from investments accounted for using thétg method (1.6 (1.3)
Difference in statutory income tax rates of foregyisidiaries (8.7 (6.8)
Non-deductible expenses 0.9 0.2
Changes in unrecognized temporary differences (0.3) 0.0
Effects of change in domestic tax rates 5.1 2.1
Other, net (1.2) 0.7
Effective income tax rates 29.9 28.0
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The movements in deferred tax assets and liakiliie as follows.

(Millions of yen)

Recognized in
April 1, 2014 F:)fgg?gﬁggs'“ Comgﬁgﬁ;nsive Others (Note) | March 31, 2015
income
Deferred tax assets
Depreciation ¥9,58( ¥(2,594) ¥— ¥0 ¥6,986
Addition of revenue from lease 5720 (162) i 2 5559
contracts, et
Net defined benefit liability 2,694 (772) (171) 0 1,751
Allowance for doubtful accounts 3,535 (609) — 338 3,265
Asset retirement obligations 2,186 (147) — — 2,039
Accrued expenses 1,705 53 — 101 1,860
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,705 (275) — 105 1,535
Bad debt write-off 1,167 (456) — 288 999
Other 3,207 473 695 351 4,727
Total deferred tax assets 31,504 (4,491) 524 1,188 28,725
Deferred tax liabilities
Additional depreciation by (5.314) 1833 i (1,202) (4.684)
oversea subsidiarie
e o e aam| e - G
Asset retirement obligations (1,604) 104 — — (1,500)
Ei\r/u_?g%?l assets measured at (1,387) . 279) 398 (1,268)
Other (2,778) 367 — (135) (1,547)
Total deferred tax liabilities (11,257) 2,963 (279) (939) (9,512)
Net deferred tax assets 20,246 (1,527) 244 249 19,213

(Note) Other includes changes in scope of consididand foreign currency translation gains anddss etc.
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(Millions of yen)

Recognized in
March 31, 2015 F:)?gg?gﬁggsm comgrtgr?(rensive Others (Note) | March 31, 2016
income
Deferred tax assets
Depreciation ¥6,98¢ ¥(1,685) ¥— ¥(36) ¥5,264
Qgr? ;rtfcrtlsc,)fertfevenue from lease 5559 (85) . . 5474
Net defined benefit liability 1,751 (588) 1,671 3) 2,831
Allowance for doubtful accounts 3,265 (316) — (92) 2,856
Asset retirement obligations 2,039 (34) — — 2,005
Accrued expenses 1,860 (349) — (29) 1,491
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,535 205 — (70) 1,670
Bad debt write-off 999 (413) — (14) 572
Other 4,727, (1,288) (68) 20 3,390
Total deferred tax assets 28,7P5 (4,555) 1,603 (217) 25,557
Deferred tax liabilities
o eprecaton b @osn) ) - 21| Gory)
purchase of lease recenat (512) 196 - - (316)
Asset retirement obligations (1,500) 16 — — (1,483)
Ei\?f'lg%i:?l assets measured at (1,268) . (67) 203 (1,132)
Other (1,547) 102 — 4 (1,439)
Total deferred tax liabilities (9,512) (402) (67) 535 (9,446)
Net deferred tax assets 19,213 (4,957) 1,536 318 16,110

(Note) Other includes foreign currency translatiains and losses, etc.
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(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Recognized in
March 31, 2015 F:)?gg?gﬁggsm comgrtgﬁcrensive Others (Note) | March 31, 2016
income
Deferred tax assets
Depreciation $61,823 $(14,911) $— $(318) $46,584
Qgr?grtiafncrtlsc,)fert?venue from lease 49,194 (752) . . 48,442
Net defined benefit liability 15,495 (5,203) 14,787 (26) 25,053
Allowance for doubtful accounts 28,893 (2,796) — (814) 25,274
Asset retirement obligations 18,044 (300) — — 17,743
Accrued expenses 16,460 (3,088) — (168) 13,194
Net operating loss carryforwards 13,584 1,814 — (619) 14,778
Bad debt write-off 8,84( (3,654) — (123) 5,061
Other 41,831 (11,398) (601) 176 30,000
Total deferred tax assets 254,203 (40,309) 14,185 (1,920) 226,168
Deferred tax liabilities
Aons, peprecaton b @y o - amsl e
purchase of lease recenat (4530) 1734 - - (2796)
Asset retirement obligations (13,274) 141 — — (13,123)
Frandial assets measured at (1) 221 - (592) 1,796 (10,017)
Other (13,690 902 — 35 (12,734)
Total deferred tax liabilities (84,176) (3,557) (592) 4,734 (83,592)
Net deferred tax assets 170,026 (43,867) 13,592 2,814 142,566

The Group does not generally recognize deferrediahxiities on taxable temporary differences rethto its investments in
subsidiaries. This is because the Company is abtontrol the timing of the reversal of the tempyrdifferences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foresdefuture.

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, the total amount ofpterary differences related to undistributed profisubsidiaries that were
not recognized as deferred tax liabilities were,2B@ million and ¥95,880 million ($848,495 thouspnmdspectively.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred taxetasshe Group considers the probability that parall of the deferred tax
assets will not be recovered. The ultimate recoe¢ryeferred tax assets is dependent on whethablevprofit will be available
during the period in which deductible temporaryfatinces can be reversed and unused tax creditbeartilized in the
calculation of tax amounts in each respective taisgliction. Although the recoverability is not ohéfive, the Group considers
the reversal schedule of deferred tax liabilitiad @xpected future taxable profit in assessingréiceverability of deferred tax
assets. Based on these factors, the Group belieses ts probable that deferred tax assets tletlatermined to be recognizable
as of March 31, 2016 will be recovered.

The deductible temporary differences for which defé tax assets have not been recognized arelawdgol
(Thousands of

(Millions of yen} U.S.dollars

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Deductible temporary differences ¥2.607 ¥2,643 $23,389
Total 2,607 2,643 23,389
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12. Other assets and other liabilities

The components of other assets and other liakilitie as follows.
(Thousands of

(Millions of yen} U.S.dollars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Other assets
Inventories ¥3,325 ¥3,718 $32,902
Advance payments 16,780 11,686 103,415
Prepaid expenses 17,694 18,981 167,973
Other 4,102 3,137 27,761
Total other assets 41,903 37,524 332,070
Other liabilities
Accrued expenses 13,075 13,186 116,690
Advances received 26,785 26,373 233,389
Other 18,661 24,906 220,407
Total other liabilites 64,809 67,878 600,690

Unperformed obligations for securitized receivables represent reasonable estimates and accruals afrtbent that is expected
to be paid by the Group in future periods in respdcderecognized finance lease receivables. Tlmdade amounts for
consumption taxes on future lease payments bydessed property taxes which are levied on the Coynpariegal owner of
underlying assets, etc.

Other included inother liabilitiesincludes provisions for asset retirement obligatjaic.
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13. Employee benefits
(1) Retirement and severance benefits

The Group has externally-funded defined benefipomate pension plans and unfunded severance lumgpeayment plans as
defined benefit plans to provide for the paymenteofployee retirement benefits. The Group also hemetl contribution
pension plans as defined contribution plans.

Defined benefit corporate pension plans provideumptsum payment or pension as retirement benefised on the
employees’ salary and length of service, and seegerdump-sum payment plans provide a lump-sum payrased on the
employees’ salary and length of service.

The plan is administered by the Hitachi Capital Coap Pension Fund (“Fund”) that is legally sepatdtem the Group.
Under the Defined Benefit Corporate Pension Act,@neup is obligated to make contributions to Funat throvides pension
benefits. The amount of contributions is reviewedaaegular basis by the Fund to the extent pexchltly laws, and the Group is
obligated to make contributions into the future.

Directors of the Fund are required to comply withménistrative measures by the Minister of Healthbaur and Welfare or
Chief of Regional Bureau of Health and Welfare in adance with laws and regulations, as well as tHaviy of the Fund and
resolutions by the board of trustees, and fulfigit duties for the best interest of the Fund. Bbard of trustees consists of
representatives selected by the employer (“Selettestees”) and those selected by employees (“CatioptTrustees”) in equal
numbers. All resolutions of the board of trusteeslidbe passed by a majority of the attendees sardéherwise provided for by
laws and regulations and the bylaws. In the casetiaf vote, the chairperson shall make the detisio

It is also stipulated that the directors of the drame prohibited to conduct any activity, for thenbfit of themselves or any
third party, that may prevent appropriate admiaigtn and management of contributions that shoeldied to pay benefits
(“Contributions”) and that when the directors failgerform their duties related to operation of ued regarding administration

and management of the Contributions, they shallgbe jointly and severally liable for damages argsfrom such failure against

the Fund.

The Contributions are managed by managing trusteasdordance with the terms and conditions seh foytthe investment
management rules approved by the board of trusiEes.Fund fulfills its duties to manage the Contiitms safely and

efficiently by setting a basic policy on managemehthe Contributions and relevant implementatioidglines and provide

them to the managing trustees.

For severance lump-sum payment plans, the Grorgsponsible for making direct payments to pensgner

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015 and 2fiE5changes in the present value of defined beokefigations and fair

value of plan assets are as follows:

Changes in present value of defined benefit obbgati

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S.dollars
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 201 March 31, 201 March 31, 201

Defined benefit obligations at beginning of year 1461 ¥56,158 $496,973
Service cost 1,648 1,659 14,681
Interest cost 978 836 7,398
Benefits paid (2,084) (2,845) (25,176)
Past service cost — 0 0
Exchange differences and other 250 (762) (6,743)
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations

Qr?;%izzlssi:lrj;zggllosses ar?s?ng from changes ?n 3.083 3.824 33,840

nggggp?rﬁl:nsssirrl?plt?c?r?es arising from changes in 841 (69) (610)

Other (922) 637 5,637
Defined benefit obligations at end of year 56,158 59,438 526,000
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Changes in fair value of plan assets

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen} U.S. dollar)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 201 Marck 31, 201 March 31, 201

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 44| ¥50,866 $450,141
Interest income 918 793 7,017
ngfﬁmr;gﬁni;f defined benefit plan assets 4,283 (887) (7,849)
Employer’s contributions 2,608 2,416 21,380
Benefits paid (1,600) (2,242) (19,840)
Exchange differences and other 239 (773) (6,840)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 50,866 50,172 444,000

The weighted average key actuarial assumptions insactuarial calculation of defined benefit obtigas at March 31, 2015

and 2016 are as follows.

March 31, 2016
1.0%

March 31, 2015
1.5%

Discount rate

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, changes of 0.5% indikeount rate, holding other assumptions constaotld have affected
the defined benefit obligations by the amounts shbwelow. This impact reflects only changes in tiecaunt rate, and actual
changes may have a different impact on the defireefit obligations.

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen) U.S. dollar)
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Increase by 0.5% ¥(4,319) ¥(4,518) $(39,982)
Decrease by 0.5% 4,748 4,890 43,274

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, the weighted averagatiun of defined benefit obligations is as follows
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
15.82 years 15.52 years

Weighted average duration

The plan assets are exposed to general investriséntinterest rate risk, inflation risk, and longgwisk, etc. The Fund’s
investment policy of the plan assets is to maintairrent value of assets that are necessary affidieof to pay lump-sum
payments and pension benefits, to ensure stabiiésgrothe long term, and to aim at sound finahpiasition.

To this end, the Fund has set a target rate ofrrétuconsideration of the composition of the emypkes, funding level of the
plan assets, risk-bearing capacity of the Companlyitsncertain subsidiaries and the trend of manageéranvironment of the
plan assets, and then, determined a policy assetarachieve the target rate of return, by takiogoant of expected rate of
return for each asset class, standard deviatioatefof return and correlation coefficient betwasgets.

The policy asset mix of the Fund aims to have #f@ar mix of approximately 25% in domestic andda@n equity securities,
approximately 68% in domestic and foreign publia arorporate bonds, approximately 5% in alternativeestments and
approximately 2% in cash on hand and at banks fliversified investment through commingled funds.

The fair value of plan assets invested at Marct2815 and 2016 is as follows.
(Millions of yen

March 31, 2015
Quoted market price in an active market
Total
Yes No
Commingled funds ¥— ¥47,369 ¥47,369
Cash on hand and at banks 6 — 6
Other 3,071 420 3,491
Total 3,077 47,789 50,866
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(Millions of yen

March 31, 2016

Quoted market price in an active market
Total
Yes No
Public and corporate bonds ¥4,802 ¥— ¥4,802
Commingled funds — 43,618 43,618
Cash on hand and at banks 1,425 — 1,425
Other 69 256 325
Total 6,297 43,875 50,172

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

March 31, 2016

Quoted market price in an active market
Total
Yes No
Public and corporate bonds $42,495 $— $42,495
Commingled funds — 386,000 386,000
Cash on hand and at banks 12,610 — 12,610
Other 610 2,265 2,876
Total 55,725 388,274 444,000

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, commingled funds of@neup consist of listed shares of 28% and 25%ewté/ely, and public
and corporate bonds of 61% and 63%, respectivetyother assets of 11% and 12%, respectively.
Plan assets presented above do not include thepGrvansferable financial instruments.

The Group sets the respective end of the repoptimipd as the measurement date.
For the purpose of maintaining the financial sowss$nof the Fund in which the Company and its cersaibsidiaries

participate, the Fund recalculates the pensiomiiimg every five years so as to reflect the funditagus to contributions.
The Group expects to contribute ¥2,266 milliontte defined benefit pension plans in the fiscal wrating March 31, 2017.

(2) Employee benefits expense

(i) Defined benefit plans

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016, tleigGrecognized expenses related to defined beplefits of ¥1,709
million and ¥1,702 million ($15,061 thousand), restvely.

(ii) Defined contribution plans
For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016, tlmupGrecognized expenses related to contributionghéodefined

contribution plans of ¥766 million and ¥726 milli¢®6,424 thousand), respectively.
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14. Equity
(1) Common stock

(Number of share
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

270,000,000 270,000,000

Number of authorized shares

(Millions of yen)  (Thousands of U.S.dolla
Total number of shares issued Issued capital Issued capital
April 1, 2014 124,826,552 shargs ¥9,983
March 31, 2015 124,826,552 shares 9,983
March 31, 2016 124,826,552 shares 9,983 $88,345

The Company issues common stock without par valbe.t@tal number of shares issued above includasurg stock.

The changes in the number of treasury stock duhiagears ended March 31, 2015 and 2016 are asvill

(Millions of yen]  (Thousands of U.S.dollai
Number of treasury stock Treasury stock Treastogks
April 1, 2014 7,939,208hares| ¥14,332
Acquisition of treasury stock 4Khares| 1
March 31, 2015 7,939,6Zhares 14,333 $126,840
Acquisition of treasury stock 3&hares 1 8
Sale of treasury stock &Bares| 0 0
March 31, 2016 7,939,93hares 14,334 126,84¢

(2) Surplus
(i) Capital surplus
The Companies Act of Japan (“Companies Act”) stimadathat 50 % or more of the amounts paid in or igesl as

consideration for issued stocks shall be recordedssued capital, with the remaining amount reabrds capital reserve
included in share premium.

(ii) Retained earnings
The Companies Act requires that an amount equaD% @f distribution of surplus be appropriated agited reserve or

earned surplus reserve until the aggregate amdwaipital reserve and earned surplus reserve etuaB% of issued capital.
Earned surplus reserve may be used based on atiesalt the general shareholders’ meeting.
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15. Accumulated other comprehensive income and cttraprehensive income

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net otedltax effect, recognized in the consolidatedestants of changes in

equity for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 20&6 follows.

(Millions of yen}

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 201 March 31, 201 March 31, 201
Foreign currency translation of adjustments
Beginning balance ¥6,674 ¥16,568 $146,619
Net other comprehensive income 9,894 (10,488) (92,814)
Transfer to non-controlling interests — (6) (53)
Ending balance 16,568 6,073 53,743
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Beginning balance 1,116 1,375 12,168
Net other comprehensive income 258 (3,478) (30,778)
Transfer to non-controlling interests — 0 0
Ending balance 1,375 (2,102) (18,601)
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Beginning balance 2,598 2,929 25,920
Net other comprehensive income 1,057 201 1,778
Transfer to retained earning (726) (664) 5,876
Transfer to non-controlling interests — — —
Ending balance 2,929 2,466 21,823
Cash flow hedges
Beginning balance 60 (2,275) (20,132)
Net other comprehensive income (2,336) 119 1,053
Transfer to non-controlling interests — — —
Ending balance (2,275) (2,156) (19,079)
Total accumulated other comprehensive incom
Beginning balance 10,449 18,597 164,575
Net other comprehensive income 8,873 (13,646) (120,761)
Transfer to retained earning (726) (664) (5,876)
Transfer to non-controlling interests — (6) (53)
Ending balance 18,597 4,280 37,876

- 34 -
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An analysis of adjustments to items presented énstatement of profit or loss by category of otb@emprehensive income,

including non-controlling interests, and relatexi ¢éffect by item for the years ended March 31, 2818 2016 is as follows.
(Millions of yen)

Year ended March 31, 2015
Before tax effect Tax effect Net of tax effect

Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation of ¥10,141 v ¥10,141
adjustment
Remeasurements of defined
benefit plan
Financial assets measured at
FVTOCI 1,245 (279) 966

Cash flow hedges (3,09%) 693 (2,402)

Share of other comprehensiyve
income of investments accounted 239 (74) 164
for using the equit methot

378 (171) 206

Total 8,909 167 9,076

Reconciliation  between  other

comprehensive

income and profit or loss itei
Foreign currency translation
adjustment

Cash flow hedges 64 2 66
Share of other comprehensive

income of investments accounted — — —
for using the equit methot

=3

Total 64 2 66

Net other comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation of
adjustment 10,141 — 10,141
Remeasurements of defined 378 (171) 206
benefit plan
Financial assets measured at
EVTOC 1,245 (279) 966
Cash flow hedges (3,031) 695 (2,336)
Share of other comprehensive
income of investments accounted 239 (74) 164
for using the equit methot
Total 8,973 169 9,143
Net other comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling
interest
Foreign currency translation of 247
adjustment
Remeasurements of defined 21
benefit plan
Financial assets measured at 0
FVTOCI
Cash flow hedges 0
Total 269
Net other comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the parent
Foreign currency translation of
adjustment 9,894
Remeasurements of defined
- 184
benefit plan
Financial assets measured at 966
FVTOCI
Cash flow hedges (2,336)
Share of other comprehensive
income of investments accounted 164
for using the equy metho
Total 8,873
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(Millions of yen)

Year ended March 31, 2016

Before tax effect Tax effect Net of tax effect
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation of -
adjustment ¥(10,743) ¥ ¥(10,743)
Rem_easurements of defined (5.279) 1671 (3,607)
bendit plans
Financial assets measured at
FVTOCI 248 (67) 181
Cash flow hedges 156 (63) 93
Share of other comprehensive
income of investments accounted 4 3) 1
for using the equit methot
Total (15,613) 1,538 (14,074)
Reconciliation between other
comprehensive income and profit
or loss item
Foreign currency translation of . . .
adjustment
Cash flow hedges 30 (5) 25
Share of other comprehensiyve
income of investments accounted — — —
for using the equit methot
Total 30 (5) 25
Net other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation of .
adjustment (10,743) (10,743)
Remeasurements of defined
benefit plan (5,279) 1,671 (3,607)
Financial assets measured at
FVTOCI 248 (67) 181
Cash flow hedges 187 (68) 119
Share of other comprehensiyve
income of investments accounted 4 3) 1
for using the equit methot
Total (15,582) 1,533 (14,049)
Net other comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling
interest
Foreign currency translation of
adjustment (254)
Remeasurements of defined (148)
benefit plan
Financial assets measured at )
FVTOCI
Cash flow hedges —
Total (403)
Net other comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the parent
Foreign currency translation of (10,488)
adjustment
Remeasurements of defined
benefit plan (3:459)
Financial assets measured at 181
FVTOCI
Cash flow hedges 119
Share of other comprehensiyve
income of investments accounted 1
for using the equit methot
Total (13,646)
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(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Year ended March 31, 2016
Before tax effect Tax effect Net of tax effect
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation of .
adjustment $(95,070) $ $(95,070)
Remeasurements of defined
benefit plan (46,716) 14,787 (31,920)
Financial assets measured at
FVTOCI (2,194) (592) 1,601
Cash flow hedges 1,380 (557) 823
Share of other comprehensive
income of investments accounted 35 (26) 8
for using the equit methot
Total (138,168) 13,610 (124,548)
Reconciliation between other
comprehensive
income and profit or loss iter
Foreign currency translation of . . .
adjustment
Cash flow hedges 265 (44) 221
Share of other comprehensiyve
income of investments accounted — — —
for using the equit methot
Total 265 (44) 221
Net other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation of .
adjustment (95,070) (95,070)
Remeasurements of defined (46,716) 14.787 (31,920)
benefit plan ' ' '
Financial assets measured at
FVTOCI 2,194 (592) 1,601
Cash flow hedges 1,654 (601) 1,053
Share of other comprehensiyve
income of investments accounted 35 (26) 8
for using the equit methot
Total (137,893) 13,566 (124,327)
Net other comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling
interest
Foreign currency translation of (2.247)
adjustment '
Remeasurements of defined
benefit plan (1,309)
Financial assets measured at 0
FVTOCI
Cash flow hedges —
Total (3,566)
Net other comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the parent
Foreign currency translation of
adjustment (92,814)
Remeasurements of defined
benefit plan (30,610)
Financial assets measured at
FVTOCI 1,601
Cash flow hedges 1,053
Share of other comprehensiyve
income of investments accounted 8
for using the equit methot
Total (120,761)
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16. Dividends
Dividends paid for the years ended March 31, 201b2016 are as follows.

Total dividends . . -
Resolution Class of sharegMillions of Dividend | Dividends pe Record date Effective date
yen) source share (yen)
Board of directors
meeting on:
Retained
May 29, 2014 Common stock ¥2,922 earnings ¥25.00 March 31, 2014 May 30, 2014
Retained
October 27, 2014 |Common stock 3,155 earnings 27.09 September 30, 2014November 28, 2014
May 28, 2015 | Common stock 3,857 E::ﬁi'ﬂgg 33.00 March 31, 2015 May 29, 2015
Retained L
October 27, 2015 [Common stock 4,909 earnings 42.00 September 30, 2015November 30, 201%

Dividends with the record date in the fiscal yeaded March 31, 2016 but with the effective daté¢hia following fiscal year
are as follows.

Total dividends . . .
Resolution Class of shatregMillions of Dividend | Dividends pe Record date Effective date
yen) source share (yen)
Board of directors Retained
meeting on: Common stock ¥4,909 earninas ¥42.00 March 31, 2016 May 30, 2016
May 26,201¢ 9
Total dividends . . .
Resolution Class of share@hosands o Dé\ggfcld 2#;?:?3;&? Record date Effective date
U.S.dollars)
Board of directors Retained
meeting on: Common stock $43,442 earnings $0.37 March 31, 2016 May 30, 2016
May 26,201¢ 9

17. Financial instruments
(1) Policy for financial instruments
Together with other members of the Hitachi Groupluding, Hitachi, Ltd., the parent company, thaée angaged in
manufacturing and sales, the Group provides consumed enterprise with a wide range of financialises in various
geographic regions that meet customers’ needsudimg leases, loans, collection of accounts rebdivand settlement of
accounts payable. To conduct this business, thepGraises funds through direct funding such asrgeation of receivables
and issuance of bonds, medium-term notes and cocrahpaper, as well as through indirect method$ agbank loans, with
consideration of the market environment and tharimad between direct and indirect funding.
To reduce the impact of interest rate fluctuationgevenues, the Group employs asset-liability gameent (ALM) and uses
fixed-rate funding such as securitization of reables, bonds, medium-term notes and bank loansnib fixed-rate assets. The
Group also uses derivative transactions as péts afeasures to reduce the risk but not for spéealpurposes.

(2) Contents and risk of financial instruments

Financial assets held by the Group are mainly gqatpoand consumer receivables, which are exposecdetbt risk arising
from the possibility of customer default and théc@rfluctuation risk caused by interest rate flations. Certain foreign
currency-denominated receivables are exposed éigfoexchange risk, but the risk is hedged withapégs denominated in the
same currency as the receivables and foreign egetfanward transactions, etc.

Other financial assets are mainly trust beneficiaglyts and shares, etc. held for policy purposéso, the Company’s non-life
insurance subsidiary primarily holds debt secwif@ investment purposes. These other financidtasare exposed to the credit
risk of the issuer and price fluctuation risk calibg interest rate fluctuation.

Financial liabilities, including borrowings, bondsjedium-term notes, commercial paper, borrowingsocated with
consolidation of structured entity for securitipatj and borrowings associated with securitizatibmeoeivables, are primarily
funded at fixed interest rates in accordance withGroup’s ALM policy, and part of the borrowing&hwariable interest rates
are converted to fixed-rate borrowings using irgerate swap transactions.

Certain overseas subsidiaries use currency swapations, etc. to hedge foreign exchange risk adguaised in foreign
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currencies and also use interest rate swap transado fix the interest rates on funds procuregiaaiable interest rates. Such
transactions may have impacts on profit or losisaf/ do not meet the requirements for hedge acoaunt

Borrowings, bonds, medium-term notes, commerciakpdporrowings associated with consolidation ofictred entity for
securitization, and borrowings associated with sBezation of receivables are exposed to liquiditgk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in funding or issuing thesewsgties and not be able to make payments wherudder certain environments.
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(3) Risk management system for financial instruments
(i) Management of credit risk (risk of customer aldf)

The Group mainly holds corporate and consumer vabés and these assets are exposed to crediritgkg from the
possibility of customer default. In general, theo® has no significant concentration of credit riskthe Group works to
identify credit risk when appropriate by the mettodaneasuring credit risk, among others, and thentarparties and business
areas of the Group are well diversified.

The Group extends various types of credit, inclgdemases and loans, and, in accordance with tlut cigk management
rules, etc., the Group has developed and operasgdtam for credit management, including creditenenfor each deal, credit
limit, credit information management, internal ng, requirements for guarantees or collateralspomse to problem
receivables, and periodic monitoring of the finahstatus.

Credit risk is managed by sales departments asasdlly receivable control departments. Large traiosescof more than a
certain amount require the approval of the exeeutificers in charge according to the degree ditrésk of the borrowers.

Credit risk on issuers of other financial asset®amaged by the department handling the transaciiodghe department in
charge of finance by regularly monitoring credfoimation and market prices. Counterparty risk onvagéve transactions is
managed by the department in charge of finance dnyitoring issuer’s ratings and other relevant infation and periodically
reporting to the executive officer in charge office.

The Group executes credit enhancement procedusestwe collection of trade receivables, when deemeeessary.

There is no significant asset held as collateral.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk withooitateral or other credit enhancement (excludirgglit guarantees) is
the carrying amount of financial assets presentethé consolidated financial statements. See N8téCdmmitments and
contingencies” for credit guarantees.

The contractual balances of financial assets byntatthat are overdue but not impaired at eacbafiyear-end are as

follows. The Group considers that all financial eissthat are not overdue and not impaired at emdal fyear-end are
recoverable.

(Millions of yen)

March 31, 2015

Between 31 | Between 91
Within 30 days days and 90| days and ong Over one yea Total

day:s yeal
Trade and other receivables ¥1,355 ¥3,526 ¥— ¥— ¥4,882
Finance lease receivables 13,265 2,159 690 99 16,214

(Millions of yen)

March 31, 2016

Between 31| Between 91
Within 30 days days and 90| days and ong Over one yea Total

days yeal
Trade and other receivables ¥2,636 ¥5,426 ¥— ¥— ¥8,062
Finance lease receivables 10,290 2,234 1,187 866 14,578

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

March 31, 2016

Between 31 | Between 91
Within 30 days days and 90| days and ong Over one yea Total

days yeal
Trade and other receivables $23,327 $48,017 $— $— $71,345
Finance lease receivables 91,061 19,769 10, 504 7,663 129,008
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The changes in allowance for doubtful accountsaar®llows.

(Millions of yen)

Trade and other Finance lease Other financial assgts
receivables receivables arrgg?tiszuer(egozt Total
April 1, 2014 ¥6,699 ¥8,328 ¥44 ¥15,072
Increase due to changes in companies 11 — — 11
Increase during the year (addition) 9,133 8,786 20 17,940
;)Ercprce);se during the year (for intended (3.023) (894) (31) (3,949)
Decrease during the year (reversal) (5,694) (7,283) (25) (13,002)
Other 355 993 — 1,348
March 31, 2015 7,483 9,930 8 17,422
Increase during the year (addition) 5,563 3,884 31 9,479
Eﬁggg:e during the year (for intended (4.124) (5.291) i (9,415)
Decrease during the year (reversal) (2,072) (1,661) (32) (2,765)
Other (507) (438) — (946)
March 31, 2016 7,342 6,423 9 13,775
(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Trade and other

Finance lease

Other financial asse
measured at

ts

Total

receivables receivables amortizel cos
March 31, 2015 $66,221 $87,876 $70 $154,176
Increase during the year (addition) 49,230 34,371 274 83,884
r[))fgggese during the year (for intended (36,495) (46,823) . (83.318)
Decrease during the year (reversal) (9,486) (14,699) (274) (24,469)
Other (4,486) (3,876) — (8,371)
March 31, 2016 64,973 56,840 79 121,902

The sum of balances of trade and other receivaliilesnce lease receivables, and other financiagtasmeasured at
amortized cost individually impaired at March 30,18 and 2016 amounted to ¥20,759 million and ¥228#8lion ($202,362
thousand), respectively, and the allowance for tfaulaccounts provided for these receivables anedind ¥10,834 million

and ¥6,508 million ($57,592 thousand), respectively

(i) Management of market risk (risk of fluctuatmin foreign exchange rate or interest rate)

(a) Management of interest rate risk

In accordance with ALM policies approved by reprgative executive officer each fiscal year, the Campchecks asset
and liability durations and manages interest riatetdation risk. The progress and status are regayh a monthly basis to
the representative executive officer and the exeeudfficer in charge of finance. Certain consolethtsubsidiaries also
review the effects of interest rate changes onitpoofloss, etc. on a regular basis in accordanitie the respective ALM

policies.

Certain overseas subsidiaries enter into interésts@ap transactions to fix interest rates on fymdgured at variable
interest rates. Such transactions may have impacgtsofit or loss if they do not meet the requirets€or hedge accounting.

(b) Management of foreign exchange rate risk

The Group manages foreign exchange rate fluctuais&ron a deal-by-deal basis.

In the absence of corresponding receivables, tloeisenters into currency swap transactions, etelysfor the purpose

of hedging foreign exchange rate fluctuation riskfunds raised in foreign currencies.

(c) Management of price fluctuation risk

Investments, including marketable securities, asénim held for policy purposes, and the Company itawsirelevant
market environment and the financial status obiisiness partners on a regular basis. The infoomasi reported to the

executive officer in charge of finance on a regblasis.
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The Company’s non-life insurance subsidiary prinyahiblds debt securities, whose tolerance for risknanaged by
establishing risk limits. In addition, the departrh@n charge of managing investment risk monitarg analyzes investment
risk generally twice a year, the result of whicldported to the Risk Management Committee on a aedalsis.

(d) Derivative transactions

With regard to derivative transactions, the Groepasates the execution and approval functionsfiardint departments
to meet internal control requirements, and managesconducts derivative transactions in accordattethe Group risk
management regulations.

(e) Quantitative information related to market risk

The Group’s primary financial instruments subjectrterest rate risk includirade and other receivables, Finance lease
receivables, public and corporate bonds includedGther financial assets, Borrowings and bonds, and interest rate swap
transactions included i@ther financial assets andOther financial liabilities.
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis
At March 31, 2015 and 2016, the impact of an inseeaf 0.01% in interest rates applicable to finahicistruments held
by the Group at such dates, holding all other e constant, on income before income tax in tmsaclidated statements

of profit or loss of the Group, were decreased ¥b8bon and ¥71 million, respectively.

(iii) Management of liquidity risk related to fundj (risk of not being able to make payments whes) du
To reduce the impact of liquidity risk, the Compasontrols liquidity-on-hand in consideration of matlenvironment,
manages the repayment terms taking into accountirityabf financial assets, and employs diversiffadding methods and
financial institutions as the source of funds. Imrvh 2016, the Company concluded a global commitriieatagreement
(multi-currency and multi-borrower-type) for a tbt ¥50,000 million with a number of financial titsitions to strengthen
measures against liquidity risk. The amount avélgbnused amount) at March 31, 2016 was ¥50,00®mi
The balance of financial liabilities held by theo@p by maturity is as follows. Derivative transans to be settled on a net

basis with other contracts are also presenteceigtbss amount of inflow or outflow on a deal-bygldeasis.
Items without a fixed receivable or payable amaanet disclosed at the amount calculated using ameisit rate estimated
based on the spot rate at March 31, 2015 and 2016.
Under financial guarantee contracts, in case aoddhils to make a payment for the obligation sabje the guarantee, the

Group is obligated to compensate the loss uponestqThe maximum exposure is the carrying amourbaf guarantee

liability described in Note 29 “Commitments and dngéncies.”

(Millions of yen)

March 31, 2015
C;?]:Lydg? C(L)JRt?IascCt(L)JgIn::eadsh Within 1 year ﬁr)tf rrn%)ryee?r:aau‘i Mo;igr?n 5
flows years

Borrowings ¥1,578,815  ¥1,592,683 ¥776,637 ¥736,154 ¥79,891
Bonds 568,337 602,841 124,390 338,149 140,301
Finance lease obligations 1,951 1,951 684 1,266 —
Egrrﬁriggtexchange forward Inflow 1 1 1 - -
Outflow (84) (84) (43) (41) —

Currency swaps Inflow 7,368 7,368 1,486 5,717 164
Outflow (27,762) (27,762) (11,503) (16,258) —

Interest rate swaps Inflow 203 203 155 48 —
Outflow (1,570) (1,570) (52) (1,310) (207)

(Millions of yen)

March 31, 2016
ii:gﬂg? nggfcctﬁglngih Within 1 year ﬁ‘gf rrntryee?r:at;u‘s Mo;(z;rr]gn 5
flows years

Borrowings ¥1,771,824  ¥1,796,793 ¥873,194 ¥854,811 ¥68,786
Bonds 568,174 582,684 132,237 332,466 117,980
Finance lease obligations 1,679 1,679 709 969 —
(l:grr](tariggtexchange forward Inflow 0 0 0 . .
Outflow (12) (12) (12) — —

Currency swaps Inflow 16,772 16,772 8,195 8,514 62
Outflow (7,591) (7,591) (4,286) (3,305) —

Interest rate swaps Inflow 21 21 5 16 0
Outflow (1,956) (1,956) (137) (1,787) (32)
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(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

March 31, 2016
%?]:Lylzr;? C(L)JRt?IascCt(L)JgInE:eadsh Within 1 year ﬁr)tf rrn%)ryee?r:a?lu‘i Mo;ietlf;:m 5
flows years
Borrowings $15,679,858 $15,900,823 $7,727,380 $7,564,699 $608,725
Bonds 5,028,123 5,156,495 1,170,238 2,942,176 1,044,070
Finance lease obligations 14,858 14,858 6,274 8,575 —
Egrrlfriggtexchange forward Inflow 0 0 0 . -
Outflow (97) 97) 97) — —
Currency swaps Inflow 148,424 148,424 72,522 75,345 548
Outflow (67,176) (67,176) (37,929) (29,247) —
Interest rate swaps Inflow 185 185 44 141 0
Outflow (17,309) (17,309) (1,212) (15,814) (283)

(4) Capital management
The balance of borrowings and bonds, cash and emsivalents, and capital (equity attributable tanerg of the parent) that

are subject to the Group’s management is as follows
(Thousands of

(Millions of yer) U.S.dollars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Borrowings and bonds ¥2,149,103 ¥2,341,683 $20,722,858
Cash and cash equivalents 119,314 157,091 1,390,185
Capital (equity attributable to owners pf
the paren 325,223 335,503 2,969,053

In addition to general regulations provided by @mmpanies Act, etc., the Insurance Business Act &met foreign laws and
regulations require certain subsidiaries of theuprto maintain such ratios as the solvency margiio and capital adequacy
ratio above a certain level.

Each subsidiary maintains its capital ratio at Hident level and other ratios as required by lasvel regulations in the

respective countries or regions.

(5) Borrowings and bonds
(i) Details of borrowings and bonds

The details of borrowings are as follows:
(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S.dollars
Maturity Averageinteres March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
rate (%)

Short-term borrowings — 1.31% ¥257 711 ¥303,825 $2,688,716)
(mainly bank loans)
Commercial paper — 0.3%% 166,529 196,099 1,735,389
Long-term borrowings Apr. 20, 2016—
(mainly bank loans) Sept. 25, 2030 1.07% 769,292 938,765 8,307,654
Borrowings associated
with consolidation of Apr. 10, 2016—-
structured entity for Mar. 10, 2042 0.70% 209,064 237,024 2,097,557
securitizatiol
Borrowings associated
with securitization of o 28 0.94% 176,217 96,109 850,522
receivable e

. L Apr. 28, 2016—
Finance lease obligations Sept. 30, 2019 — 1,951 1,679 14,858
Total 0.98% 1,580,766 1,773,504 15,694,725

(Notes)
1. “Maturity” represents the repayment date forlthéance of each borrowing at March 31, 2016.
2. “Average interest rate” represents the weiglateztage interest rate applicable to the balaneadt borrowing at March 31, 2016.
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3. Long-term borrowings (mainly bank loans), Bormgs associated with consolidation of structuredyefdr securitization,
Borrowings associated with securitization of reckiga, and Financial lease obligations include cumpertion of respective

borrowings.

4. Borrowings associated with consolidation of duited entity for securitization represents fundsas through securitization of
Trade and other receivables and finance leasevedales by the structured entities that were codatdd by the Group.

5. Borrowings associated with securitization of resieles represent part of the funds raised thra@ggluritization of Trade and other
receivables and finance lease receivables, of wdbctesponding financial assets are not derecodnize

The details of bonds are as follows:

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S.dollar)
Company name/ descriptior Issue date Maturity Inte(r;’s)t rate Collateral Mazr(():ll1531, Ma;%llgl, Mazr(():ll1631,
Hitachi Capital Corporation
32;2515‘2 Lé’;i%‘;”;‘;abl o | May27,2011 Mar. 18, 2016 0.68% No ¥19,984 ¥ $—
The 42nd g‘gsgg‘;ffabl o | oct14,2011 | Dec. 20, 2016 0.57% No 15007 15020 132,920
Ine a3td ggiﬁg“gggabl o | Apr.18,2012 | June 20,2017 0.57% No 20496 30,020 265,663
ggﬁqggtti'; ‘ggf]fj‘;“';ggabl o | Oct 18,2012 |  Dec.20,2017 0.42% No 9,989 9,997 88,469
Zgﬁqgtﬁz Egiﬁg“';‘;gabl o | Oct 18,2012 Dec. 20, 2019 0.67% No 9,990 9,996 88,460
Ihe st ‘ggﬁ%@“{;‘;ﬂam o | Apr23,2013 | June 20,2018 0.45% No 19,473 19,989 176,893
e artn ‘é’;f}g‘;“{;ggabl o | Apr23,2013 | Mar 20,2023 0.87% No 14,946 14,953 132,327
ggﬁqggtti'; ‘ggf]z‘;“';ggabl o | Sept 13,2013|  Sept. 20,2014 0.44% Ng 14,959 14,972 132,495
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(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S.dollars
. . Interest rate March 31, March 31, March 31,
Company name/ description Issue date Maturity (%) Collateral 2015 2016 2016
Hitachi Capital Corporation
ZQ;;‘?&E Eﬂiﬁi“éi‘;am o| Sept 13,2013 Sept. 18, 2024 0.72% Ng ¥9068  ¥9,975 $88,274
The 50th unsecured o
domestic bonds payable | M- 20, 2014 Mar. 19, 2024 0.89% No 19,921 19,930 176,371
Ine S1st %';sni‘;“,iiiam | unes, 2014 June 20, 2019 0.31% NG 19,050 19,966 176,690
gzr‘;ggg‘g g‘gsgg‘g;efable June 3, 2014 June 18, 2021 0.51% Ng 14,066 14,976 132,530
The 53rd unsecured
domestic bonds payable | June 3. 2014 Mar. 19, 2024 0.82% No 14939 14,947 132,274
gg;gg;z Egiiiuéiﬂam o| sept11,2014 | sept 17,2021 0.42% NG 14044 14,953 132,327
Ine 5ot ‘égﬁg‘;“{;gﬂahl o| sept11,2014 | sept 18,202 0.96% NG 14036 14,942 132,230
The 56th unsecured Dec. 19, 2014 Dec. 20, 2019 0.20% No 9965 9,973 88,256
domestic bonds payable
The 57th unsecured o d
domestic bonds payable | DeC- 19, 2014 Dec. 20, 2024 0.62% No 9970 9,974 88,265
The 58th unsecured
domestic bonds payable | M@y 12015 June 19, 2020 0.22% No — 9,969 88,221
The 59th unsecured
domestic bonds payable | Ul 21, 2015 Mar. 20, 2018 0.15% No — 29,932 264,884
The 60th unsecured Oct. 26, 2015 Oct. 19, 2018 0.16% No - 29,936 264,920
domestic bonds payable
Hitachi Capital(UK) PLC
. S 0,
MTN program bond Mﬁ;r_lg’" ooz ’Xg_ 1215"22001262 Lo No 285.974| 231,998 2,053,079
Hitachi Capital America Corp.
Feb. 13,2012 | Jan.24,2017—| 1.25%-
MTN program bond June 10, 2015 Feb. 3. 2020 210% No 8,652 8,676 76,778
Hitachi  Capital (Hong|
Kong) Ltd.
L';(%lst bond payable in | po. 51 2012 Dec. 21, 2016 1.38% No 4650 4,359 38,575
Lr}‘(%znd bond payable in| 5., 35 2015 Jan. 27, 2017 1.25% Ng 4650 4,359 38,575
L'}‘(%&d bond payable in | g0 18 2015 | sept. 18, 2014 1.13% NG - 4,359 38,575
Total 568,337 568,178 5,028,123
(Notes)

1. “Interest rate” shows a nominal coupon rate iapple to each bond, and therefore it differs fraameffective interest rate used to

measure amortized cost.

2. MTN (Medium Term Notes) program bond includes hedged items subject to interest rate swapstmaert variable rates to
fixed rates and fixed rates to variable rates, ‘4merest rate” shows an interest rate taking extoount the effect of the hedge.
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18. Fair value of financial instruments

(1) Details of financial assets and fair value

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Carrying . Carrying . Carrying .
amoun Fair value amoun Fair value amoun Fair value
Financial assets
Finance lease receivables ¥996,438 ¥1,033,161] ¥1,054,180 ¥1,094,553 $9,329,026] $9,686,309
Financial assets measured at
amortized co:
Cash on hand and at bank 46,701 46,701 38,389 38,389 339,725 339,725
Related company deposits 72,6113 72,613 118,701 118,701| 1,050,451 1,050,451
Cash and cash equivalents 119,314 119,314 157,091 157,091| 1,390,185 1,390,185
Notes receivable 4,876 4,876 4,730 4,730 41,858 41,858
Accounts receivable 1,363,009 1,385,001 1,354,242 1,372,646| 11,984,442 12,147,309
Trade and other receivables 1,367,886 1,389/8781,358,973 1,377,377| 12,026,309] 12,189,176
Public and corporate bonds 5,581 5,616 4,771 4,817 42,221 42,628
Time deposits with a maturiy 4,067 4,067 3,200 3,200 28,318 28,318
of three months or mc
Other receivables 12,233 12,233 13,639 13,639 120,699 120,699
Other investments 6,185 6,185 5,128 5,128 45,380 45,380
Other 5,020 5,020 5,009 5,009 44,327 44,327
Other financial assets 33,088 33,122 31,749 31,794 280,964 281,362
Financial assets measured at
FVTPL
Other investments 7,699 7,699 7,882 7,882 69,752 69,752
Other financial assets 7,699 7,699 7,882 7,882 69,752 69,752
Financial assets measured at
FVTOCI
Equity 6,468 6,468 5,174 5,174 45,787 45,787
Other financial assets 6,468 6,468 5,174 5,174 45,787 45,787
Derivative financial assets
Interest rate swaps 203 203 21 21 185 185
Currency swaps 7,368 7,368 16,772 16,772 148,424 148,424
Foreign exchange forwar 1 1 0 0 0 0
contract
Other financial assets 7,573 7,573 16,795 16,795 148,628 148,628
Total financial assets 2,538,469 2,597,218 2,631,847 2,690,669 23,290,681 23,811,230
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(i) Finance lease receivables
The portion offinance lease receivables recognized as finance lease transactions thatetated to the right to receive future
lease payments is classified according mainly éotyipe of receivables, collection history of indival receivables (e.g. internal
rating), and the respective term, and the fair #asucalculated for each classification by discmgthe sum of principals and
interests, taking into consideration early repaytsiecancellations and estimated bad debt losseyy tise risk-free rate. With
regard to possible bankrupt receivables, estimadeddebt losses are calculated based on the retdeemount from insurance,
collateral and sale of pledged properties, ancetbes it is assumed that the carrying amount, hestmated bad debt losses, of
these receivables approximates the fair value.
(Note) See Note 18 “Fair value of financial instemnts (3) fair value measurements” for details ¢dired subordinate interests

related to the transfer of finance lease receiwinleluded in finance lease receivables

(ii) Financial instruments measured at amortizest co

(a) Related company deposits
The Group deposits funds with the parent compaty,fer investment purpose and receives fixed oiabde interest income.
Due to the short-term nature, the carrying amotdinélated company deposits is assumed to approgithatfair value.

(b) Accounts receivable
The fair value of accounts receivable, most of Wwibears fixed interest rates, is determined insth@lar manner as finance
lease receivables.

(c) Notes receivable, other receivables and tinmosiés with a maturity of three months or more
Due to the short-term nature, it is assumed thatctrrying amount of notes receivable, other red#és and time deposits
with a maturity of three months or more approxiredtee fair value.

(d) Public and corporate bonds and other investsnent
The Company’s non-life insurance subsidiary prinyaniblds debt securities for investment purposes.piblic and corporate
bonds and other investments whose fair value camdssured using market prices, the fair value lisutated based on such
market prices.

(e) Other
Other mainly comprise short-term loans to asscgjaed due to the short-term nature, it is assuimatcthe carrying amount

¥approximates the fair value.

(i) Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Other investments
The Group holds trust beneficiary rights for polyrposes and invests in investment partnerships.
See Note 18 “Fair value of financial instrument} f@r value measurements” for the calculation rodtiof fair value of

financial assets measured at FVTPL.

(iv) Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Equity securities
The Group holds listed and unlisted shares forcgglurposes.
See Note 18 “Fair value of financial instrument} f@r value measurements” for the calculation rodttof fair value of

financial assets measured at FVTOCI.

(v) Derivative financial assets
See Note 18 “Fair value of financial instrumentsféd value measurements” and Note 19 “Derivatiaed hedging activities”

for derivative financial assets.
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(vi) Fair value of financial assets measured at 6T by issuer
The fair value of major equity instruments desigdads at FVTOCI is as follows.

(Millions of yen)

March 31, 2015
Issuer Amount
Sompo Japan Nipponkoa Holdings, Inc. ¥1,120
BOT Lease Co., Ltd. 692
SOGO MEDICAL CO., LTD. 642
AEON CO., LTD. 594
The Mortgage Corporation of Japan, Limited 533
ISEKI & CO., LTD. 529
SEKISUI CHEMICAL CO., LTD. 484
Credit Information Center Corp. (CIC) 430
CARDNET 291
The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited 198
Kantou Eco Recycle Co., Ltd. 184
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. 133
Other (23 issuers) 633

(Millions of yen)  (Thousands of U.S.dolloars)

March 31, 2016
Issuer Amount Amount
Sompo Japan Nipponkoa Holdings, Inc. ¥956 $8,460
BOT Lease Co., Ltd. 800 7,079
AEON CO., LTD. 732 6,477
The Mortgage Corporation of Japan, Limited 623 5,513
ISEKI & CO., LTD. 508 4,495
SEKISUI CHEMICAL CO., LTD. 431 3,814
Credit Information Center Corp. (CIC) 417 3,690
CARDNET 340 3,008
Other (15 issuers) 364 3,221

(vii) Disposal of financial assets measured at FZTO
Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI that vdésposed during the years ended March 31, 2015286 were as

follows:
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
Year ended March 31, 2015 Year ended March 31, 2016 Year ended March 31, 2016
Fair value at . Fair value at . Fair value at .
) Accumulated Dividend . Accumulated Dividend . Accumulated Dividend
the g;stf)osal gains income the g;stf)osal gains income the g;stf)osal gains income
¥2,207 ¥1,131 ¥39 ¥1,545 ¥992 ¥10 $13,672 $8,774 $88

These instruments were sold primarily as a resulewiewing the business relationship with issuéfsr the years ended
March 31, 2015 and 2016, accumulated gains, né&qfreclassified from other comprehensive incomeetained earnings
amounted to ¥730 million and ¥664 million ($5,8RA6usand), respectively.

For equity instruments designated as at FVTOCIwlgich a significant fall in their fair value frorhé acquisition cost in the
year ended March 31, 2015 was not temporary, aclatetl losses after tax that were transferred fracumulated other
comprehensive income to retained earnings were #ibm There was no applicable instrument in theayended March 31,
2016.
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(2) Details of financial liabilities and fair value

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2016

Carrying . Carrying . Carrying .
amoun Fair value amoun Fair value amoun Fair value
Financial liabilities
Finance lease obligations ¥1,951 ¥1,951 ¥1,679 ¥1,679 $14,858 $14,858
Borrowings and bonds 1,951 1,951 1,679 1,679 14,858 14,858
Financial liabilities measured
alamortized co:
Notes payable 356 356 964 964 8,530 8,530
Accounts payable 272,679 272,679 228,024 228,024 2,017,911 2,017,911
Trade and other payables 273,036 273,036 228,989 228,989 2,026,451 2,026,451
Short-term borrowings 483,434 483,434 499,924 499,924 4,424,106 4,424,106
Bonds 568,337 572,759 568,178 574,650 5,028,123 5,085,398
Long-term borrowings 1,095,380 1,101,201 1,271,899 1,285,585 11,255,743 11,376,858
Borrowings and bonds 2,147,1%2 2,157,396 2,340,003 2,360,161 20,707,991 20,886,380
Other payables 27,912 27,912 20,492 20,492 181,345 181,345
Accrued interest expenses 3,057 3,057 2,583 2,583 22,858 22,858
Deposits received 11,957 11,957 8,276 8,276 73,238 73,238
Financial guarantee
contract 5,649 5,649 3,611 3,611 31,955 31,955
Contract guarantee 37,891 36,539 33,162 32,685 293,469 289,247
Other 1,866 1,866 1,529 1,529 13,530 13,530
Other financial liabilities 60,423 59,070 49,162 48,686 435,061 430,849
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps 1,570 1,570 1,956 1,956 17,309 17,309
Currency swaps 27,762 27,762 7,591 7,591 67,176 67,176
Foreign exchange
forward contract 84 84 1 1 97 97
Other derivative liabilities 3 3 1 1 8 8
Other financial liabilities 29,421 29,421 9,561 9,561 84,610 84,610
Total financial liabilities 2,539,896 2,548,787 2,649,889 2,669,570 23,450,345 23,624,513
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(i) Finance lease obligations
Due to the immateriality on the consolidated statets of financial position, the fair value of fir@nlease obligations is
determined by discounting the balance of minimuaséepayments to the present value using the imptité in the lease at
initial recognition or additional borrowing ratésccordingly, the fair value is based on the camyamount.

(i) Financial liabilities measured at amortizedsto

(a) Notes payable, accounts payable, short-termotvirgs, other payables, accrued interest expearsgtsleposits received
It is assumed that the carrying amount approxinmtie$air value as these liabilities are mostlyledtwithin a year.

(b) Bonds and long-term borrowings

The fair value of bonds with market price is basedthe market price, and the fair value of bondtheit market price is
determined by discounting the sum of principals iaterests using an interest rate adjusted foregh&ining term and credit risk
of the bonds.

The fair value of long-term borrowings bearing flog interest rates is assumed to approximate dneying amount because
such interest rates reflect the market rates imoat $ime and the Group’s credit condition has etwnged significantly since the
execution of such borrowings.

The fair value of long-term borrowings bearing fixeterest rates is calculated by discounting tira ef principal and interest
categorized according to certain periods usingé@sterates assumed to be applied to similar borrgsvi

(c) Financial guarantee contracts

The carrying amount of financial guarantee consrare measured at the higher of the amount o&limteasurement net of
accumulated amortization and the best estimatheobtitflow required to settle the present obligativat is likely to arise from
the request to perform the financial guaranteerecttand the carrying amount is assumed to apmatei the fair value.

(d) Contract guarantees

Contract guarantees are monetary obligations redefr@m certain customers as credit enhancementfifi@nce lease
receivables and trade and other receivables, vareimormally returned after the repayment of thgimal loans.

The fair value of contract guarantees with a matwf one year or more is determined in a similanmer as the underlying
receivable by discounting the estimated amoungeteeburned using risk-free rates.

The fair value of contract guarantees expectedetreturned within a year is assumed to approxirtreearrying amount due
to their short-term nature.

(i) Derivative financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities are described iroté 18 “Fair value of financial instruments (3)rfaalue measurements” and
Note 19 “Derivatives and hedging activities.”
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(3) Fair value measurements
(i) Fair value hierarchy
Financial instruments measured at fair value oregular basis subsequent to initial recognition @essified into three
different levels in the fair value hierarchy basmu observable inputs used for measurement and skgificance. In this
classification, the fair value hierarchy is defiresifollows:
Level 1:Fair values based on the unadjusted qumieds in active markets for identical assetsatsilities.
Level 2:Fair values measured using inputs other thase included in Level 1 that are observableeeitirectly or indirectly
Level 3:Fair values measured using significant tapiat are unobservable
When the fair value is measured using multiple iapthen the fair value level is categorized ireitsirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level inghat is significant to the entire measurement.
For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016, taseno transfer between levels of the fair valwsarchy.

(ii) Retained subordinate interests related to thesfer of finance lease receivables
Finance lease receivables recognized as a resiittasfce lease transactions include retained sitatel interests related to
the transfer of finance lease receivables whicteHseen derecognized in accordance with the prexdoosunting principle as
permitted by IFRS First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Sandards, and are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis subsequent to initial recognition.
As the significant inputs to measure fair valuetlé subordinate interests are unobservable, theiGaotassifies the
subordinate interests as Level 3, and determineddin value by discounting the sum of principalanterest, taking into

consideration early repayments, cancellationsmastid bad debt losses, and its subordinate nasirgy the risk-free rate.

(i) Financial assets measured at FVTPL or FVTOCI

Other financial assets whose fair value can be unedsbased on market price are classified as Levahd other financial
assets classified as Level 1 includes listed shares

When an active market does not exist for othemfiied assets, the fair value is determined usintketgrices of similar other
financial assets, non-distressed market pricesl@ftical or similar other financial assets, obseleranterest rates and vyield
curves, credit spreads or other relevant infornmaiticluding default, and these investments aresiflad as Level 2.

When significant inputs used to measure fair valfiinancial instruments are unobservable, thesestments are classified
as Level 3. The Group determines fair value, dejpgndn significance, by using prices quoted by fitial institutions, a
valuation model based on the investee’s discoufutiede cash flows, earnings, profitability and aesets, a comparable industry
analysis method and the method to discount futash dlows using interest rates applicable to asaation with the same
remaining period and conditions. Other financiaess classified as Level 3 include unlisted shadrest beneficiary interests and

preferred securities.

(iv) Derivatives
Derivatives measured based on a model using naressed market prices, prices in inactive marlaiservable interest rates
and yield curves, futures or spot prices for faneéggchange or commodities, are classified as L2vel
Derivatives classified as Level 2 mainly includéenest rate swaps, currency swaps, and futuresoptidns contracts for
foreign exchange or commodities.
Fair values of derivative transactions are caledldtased on prices quoted by financial institutions
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(v) Finance lease receivables and obligations
Finance lease receivables and obligations are easuored at fair value on the consolidated statesvarfinancial position,
but their fair value is disclosed and classified.agel 2.

(vi) Financial assets and financial liabilities reeged at amortized cost
Financial assets and financial liabilities measuatdamortized cost are not measured at fair valueghe consolidated

statements of financial position, but their faituais disclosed and classified mainly as Level 2.

The financial instruments measured at fair valu@ oecurring basis are as follows.

(Millions of yen)

March 31, 2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Finance lease receivables —¥ ¥— ¥34,028 ¥34,028
Other financial assets
Equity securities 4,21 — 2,253 6,468
Other investments — — 7,699 7,699
Derivative financial assets — 7,573 — 7,573
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities — 29,421 — 29,421
(Millions of yen)
March 31, 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Finance lease receivables —¥ ¥— ¥19,803 ¥19,803
Other financial assets
Equity securities 2,66 — 2,514 5,174
Other investments — — 7,882 7,882
Derivative financial assets — 16,795 — 16,795
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities — 9,561 — 9,561
(Thousands of
U.S.dolloars
March 31, 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Finance lease receivables —$ $— $175,247 $175,247
Other financial assets
Equity securities 23,53 — 22,247 45,787
Other investments — — 69,752 69.75:
Derivative financial assets — 148,628 — 148,621
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities — 84,610 — 84,610
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The reconciliation of recurring fair value measuesnof financial instruments classified as Levéh 3he fair value hierarchy

is as follows.
(Millions of yen)
Finance lease Other financial assets Total
receivables Equity securities Other investment$

April 1, 2014 ¥49,583 ¥2,024 ¥7,227 ¥58,835
Net gain/loss (Note 1) (639) — 9 (630)
(O'\fgteer gomprehensive income . 218 i 218
Purchase — 11 1,705 1,716
Sales/redemption (14,915) Q) (1,243) (16,159)
Transfer to Level 3 — — — —
Transfer from Level 3 — — — —
Others — 0 0 0
March 31, 2015 34,028 2,253 7,699 43,981
Net gain/loss (Note 1) (379) — 106 (268)
(O'\fgteer gomprehensive income . 258 i 258
Purchase — 3 2,553 2,557
Sales/redemption (13,849) — (2,477) (16,326)
Transfer to Level 3 — — — —
Transfer from Level 3 — — — —
Others — 0) 0) 0)
March 31, 2016 19,808 2,514 7,882 30,200
(Thousands of

U.S. dolloars
March 31, 2015 $301,132 $19,938 $68,132 $389,212
Net gain/loss (Note 1) (3,318) — 938 (2,371)
(O'\fgteer gomprehensive income . 2283 . 2283
Purchase — 26 22,592 22,628
Sales/redemption (122,55Y) — (21,920) (144,477)
Transfer to Level 3 — — — —
Transfer from Level 3 — — — —
Others — 0) 0) 0)
March 31, 2016 175,247 22,247 69,752 267,256

(Notes)
1. Gains and losses included in “Net gain/lossdteeto financial assets measured at FVTPL. Thejnaheded inRevenues and
Cost of sales.

2. Gains and losses included in “Other compreherisicome” relate to financial assets measured &4, They are included in
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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(vii) Valuation techniques and inputs
The valuation techniques and inputs of Level 3 Yaiues using unobservable inputs that are usedeimsuring fair value of

retained subordinate interests related to thefean$ finance lease receivables and trust berzfidnterests are as follows.

Valuation Ratio of unobservable inputs
Description . Unobservable inputs
technique March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Risk-free rate 0.14-0.16% 0.09%
Retained subordinate interests relatgd Expected overal
to the transfer of finance lease ;
receivables Discounted | had debt ratio of 0.20% 0.16%
cash flow | yransferred finance 970 070
method least receivable
Trust beneficiary interests Risk-free rate 0.16-%26 0.05-0.09%

The fair values of unlisted shares and investmanisavestment partnerships are calculated, depgndm significance, by

using a valuation model based on the investee'sodisted future cash flows, earnings, profitabiliiyd net assets and a

comparable industry analysis method.
(viii) Sensitivity analysis
For retained subordinate interests related tordmester of finance lease receivables and trustfluéemy interests classified as
Level 3, the Company believes there is no significdiange in the fair value due to changes in ttebservable inputs to other
reasonably possible alternative assumptions.
The Company believes that there would be no significhange in the fair values of unlisted shares iamestments in
investment partnerships classified as Level 3 assalt of changing the unobservable inputs to otleaisonably possible

alternative assumptions.

(ix) Valuation process
Fair value measurement is performed by the finateggartment that is independent from the sales ttapat in accordance

with the applicable rules, by adopting valuationd®ig that can best reflect the nature of assetactaistics and risks of
individual financial instruments.

In addition, the finance department also monitbesttends of significant indicators that could hameeffect on market price
fluctuation and verifies its consistency with pribgctuations. When it is determined that a sigaifit decline in the fair value of
a financial instrument is other-than-temporary assailt of the verification, it is reviewed and apged by the executive officer

in charge of finance and then reported to the bohakecutive officers and the board of directors.

19. Derivatives and hedging activities

(1) Fair value hedges
A fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure smgés in the fair value of assets and liabilittesa firm commitment. The

Group uses currency swaps and foreign exchangefdreontracts to hedge changes in the fair valwefisim commitment. The
Group also uses interest rate swaps to hedge dtiotu of fair value of borrowings with fixed intetepayments if such
borrowings are used to fund financial assets wéthiable interest rates.

The changes in the fair value of derivatives destigeh as fair value hedges are recognized in pofiiss, and offset the gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair valuthefhedged items to the extent the hedge is effect

The gains (losses) related to hedged items andrpdtstruments attributable to the risk hedgedaaréollows:
(Millions of yen)  (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Consolidated | Year ended March 31, 2015 Year ended March 31, 2016/ear ended March 31, 2016
statement of profi
or loss . Hedging . Hedging . Hedging
Hedged item instrumen Hedged itery instrumen Hedged item instrumen

Isr\]/\t/Z?t fate | cost of sales ¥23D ¥(278) ¥157 ¥157) $1,380|  $(1,389)
Currency swaps Cost of sales (991 1,162 (3,670) 4,136 (32,477) 36,601
Foreign
exchange Revenues and
forward cost of sales 25 (23) (24) 29 (212) 256
contract
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(2) Cash flow hedges

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure talidity in future cash flows.

The Group uses currency swaps and foreign exchfamg@rd contracts to hedge the exposure to chaimgeash flows of
forecast transactions, and uses interest rate stgapedge the exposure to changes in cash flowserelto borrowings with
variable interest rates. There is no significaniv@¢ive transaction that is assessed to be inigffe@s a result of the hedge
effectiveness assessment.

The changes in the fair value of derivatives destieggh as cash flow hedge are recognized in otheprransive income and
included in equity, and subsequently reclassified profit or loss when the hedged item is recogpuhim profit or loss.

The gains (losses) on derivatives expected to dlagsified to profit or loss due to recognitiontioé hedged items in profit or

loss within one year are as follows:

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S.dollars

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2016

Interest rate swaps ¥(49) ¥(131) $(1,159)
Currency swaps (8,487) 2,454 21,716
Foreign exchange forward contracts 1) 0 0

The changes in the amount recognized in other celemsive income are presented in Note 15 “Accumdlaither
comprehensive income and other comprehensive inéorhe amount reclassified to profit or loss islided in Revenues or
Cost of salesin the consolidated statements of profit or loss.

(3) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounis applied

Derivative transactions to which hedge accountingpplied are as follows.

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen’ U.S.dollars

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016

Fair value Fair value Fair value

Notional Notional Notional
principal | Asset | Liability | Principal | asset | Liability | Principal | asset |Liability

Fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps ¥13,000 ¥157 ¥— ¥— ¥— ¥— $— $— $—

Currency swaps 44,408 709 4,357 27,712 1,905 1,417 245,238 16,858| 12,539

Foreign exchange forward

753 1 41 116 — 11 1,026 - 97
contract
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 216,267 46 1,562 278,766 21 1,956| 2,466,955 185| 17,309

Currency swaps

Foreign exchange forward
contract

314,838 6,658 | 23,404 245,423 14,866 6,174| 2,171,884 131,557 54,637

540 — 43 266 0 — 2,353 0 -

(4) Derivative transactions to which hedge accaunis not applied
Derivative transactions to which hedge accountingat applied are as follows.

(Millions of yen)  (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016

Notional Fair value Notional Fair value Notional Fair value
principal | Asset |Liability | Principal | asset |Liability | Principal | asset | Liability
Interest rate swaps ¥260 ¥— ¥8 ¥— ¥— ¥— $— $— $—
Credit default swaps 1,442 — 3 1,352 — 1 11,964 — 8
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20. Transfer of financial assets

The Group transfers certain financial assets inolyidinance lease receivables and accounts redeitatstructured entities
established by third parties and other entitiesiirag at diversified funding sources and stable fngdThe structured entities
raise funds to purchase these financial assets égnsnof commercial paper and borrowings. Thesesfgarransactions are
similar to those generally conducted by many finanostitutions.

In case of default by a debtor, investors in thetsectured entities only have recourse to the adseld by the structured
entities, not to the other assets held by the Grédtp Group does not provide non-contractual supposecurities and do not
have implicit support arrangement with any of them.

The Group’s involvement with these structured egitregarding the transfer transactions includeflgngrovision of
liquidity enhancement and limited credit enhancemeallection agency service of receivables ancipcof fees related to
collection of receivables.

(1) Consolidated structured entities for securitirat
Certain financial assets are transferred to coraaliti structured entities for securitization. Thesectured entities are trusts
to securitize financial assets such as financeeleaxeivables and accounts receivable.

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, the assets and liaslheld by the structured entities are as follows.
(Thousands of

(Mill ions of yen U.S.dollars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Cash and cash equivalents ¥12,556 ¥16,448 $145,557
Trade and other receivables 117,053 109,975 973,230
Finance lease receivables 128,197 165,228 1,462,194
Total assets 257,808 291,652 2,580,991
Borrowings and bonds 209,064 237,024 2,097,557

(Note) Substantially all of the assets of the ctidated structured entities for securitization ased solely for repayments of
liabilities of these structured entities.

(2) Non-consolidated structured entities for sea@atiion and other entities

(i) Interests in unconsolidated structured entitigssecuritization

In certain securitization transactions involvingaicial assets, the Group uses structured ergittasp by third party financial
institutions. As these structured entities managgduch financial institutions as part of their iness also purchase a large
amount of assets from other customers, the ratitheffinancial assets transferred by the Grouphin tbtal assets of the
structured entities are small and accordingly tleu@'s relevance to the assessment of exposuréetask these structured
entities hold is tenuous.

Also, in the securitization of certain financiakeats, the Group has established trusts upon imgésémuest and sold trust
interests to investors, and the Group holds limitgerests in these trusts.

The Group may retain subordinated interests in fith@ncial assets transferred to unconsolidatedcstrad entities for
securitization, mainly for the purpose of liquidémhancement and limited credit enhancement, amefurchase the financial
assets under limited certain circumstances.

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, the maximum exposurel®ds associated with the Group’s interests inuheonsolidated
structured entities for securitization, are ¥103,2lllion and ¥67,757 million ($599,619 thousanaspectively, and they are
included in the outstanding balances of subordihaiéerests and obligations to repurchase assetlBeocarrying amount of
transferred assets which are not derecognizectinéhtirety.
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(i Transfer of financial assets to unconsolidag&dctured entities for securitization

(i) Transfer of financial assets derecognized @irtentirety

The Group does not derecognize transferred finhasiets when substantially all credit risks armhemic value related to
such financial assets are retained through subatelinterests.

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, the carrying amounttarisferred financial assets that continued togloegnized in their

entirety and related liabilities are as follows.
(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S.dollars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016

Carrying amount of transferred
financial asse

Trade and other receivables ¥93,7116 ¥64,804 $573,486

Finance lease receivables 82,643 57,441 508,327
Total assets 176,360 122,246 1,081,823
Carrying amount of related
liabilities

Borrowings and bonds 176,217 96,109 850,522

(Note) Substantially all of the financial assetansferred by the Group are used solely for repasnef liabilities to the

investors.

At March 31, 2015 and 2016, the fair value of ttemsferred financial assets whose investors ddae¢ recourse to the
Group’s Other assets, Cash and cash equivalents related to collections of the transferred finanaakets, the fair value of

related liabilities, and the net position are dfes.
(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S.dollars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016

Z:;re;/alue of transferred financial ¥180,267 ¥124,413 $1.,101,000
Cash and cash equivalents related

to collections of the transferred 27,237 4,086 36,159
financial asse

Fair value of related liabilities 176,297 96,246 851,734
Net position 31,207 32,253 285,424

(ii) Transfer of financial assets derecognizedigirt entirety

The Group derecognizes financial assets when sutiztg all credit risks and economic value relatedhe financial assets
are transferred.

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016, ¢misses) on transfers &inance lease receivables and Trade and other

receivables derecognized in their entirety are as follows.
(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S.dollars
Year ended March 31, 2015 Year ended March 31, 2016Year ended March 31, 2016
Revenues ¥(43) ¥26 $230

The Group retains obligations to provide servicfog financial assets derecognized in their entirgtgrvice to collect
principal and interest of transferred financialeds$or commission), but servicing assets or litdd are not recorded because
the amounts of servicing expense and commissiaivet are insignificant.
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21. Revenues

The major components of revenues are as follows.

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen) U.S. dollars
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Revenues
Interest income from finance leases ¥37,892 ¥39,252 $347,362
ilzggm: from operating leases and other lease-telate 208,237 232,616 2,058,548
Inter_est income from installments and other loan 64.973 70,008 620,336
receivable
Others 25,187 23,386 206,955
Total revenues 356,291 365,354 3,233,221
22. Cost of sales
The major components of cost of sales are as fsllow
(Thousands of
(Millions of yen) U.S. dollars
Year ended Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2016

Cost of sales
Interest expenses arising from financial liabifitie

measured . amortized co: ¥23,967 ¥26,532 $234,796
Operating lease and lease related expenses 188,498 188,670 1,669,646
Other 24,456 20,137 178,203
Total cost of sales 236,922 235,340 2,082,654

23. Selling, general and administrative expenses

The major components of selling, general and adtnative expenses are as follows.

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen) U.S. dollars
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016

Employee benefit expenses ¥38,374 ¥40,641 $359,654
Welfare expenses 4,847 4,728 41,840
Rent expenses 4,427 4,108 36,353
Communication expenses 1,340 1,185 10,486
Operations consignment expenses 6,057 7,461 66,026
Provision (reversal) of allowance for doubtful acots 5088 6.866 60761
and ba debt losse
Other 20,246 19,792 175,150
Total selling, general and administrative expenses 80,381 84,783 750,292
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24. Other expenses

The components of other expenses are as follows:

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen) U.S.dollars
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 201 March 31, 201 March 31, 201
Other expenses

Additional retirement payments

¥2,896

¥ $—
Impairment loss 2,188 65 575
Other 63 356 3,150
Total other expenses 5,149 421 3,725

25. Earnings per share

Earnings per share attributable to equity owneth®fparent are as follows.

Diluted earnings per share attributable to equitners of the parent are not presented as thereddutive share.

(Number of shares)

Year ended
March 31, 201

Year ended

Weighted average number of shares

116,887,224

March 31, 201

116,886,724

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.S.dollars
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 201 March 31, 201 March 31, 201
Net income attributable to owners of the parent ¥2a ¥32,694 $289,327
(Yen) (U.S.dollars
Year ended Year ended Yearended
March 31, 201 March 31, 201 March 31, 201
Earnings per share attributable to owners of thiera ¥206.53 ¥279.71 $2.47

26. Cash flow information

(1) Interest and dividends received and intereist pa

Cash flows from operating activities include thddaling interest and dividends received andinterest paid.

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen U.Sdollars
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 201 March 31, 201 March 31, 201
Interest and dividends received ¥65,955 ¥70,288 $622,017
Interest paid (23,736) (26,789) (237,070)
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27. Major subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements of the Giiaalude the financial statements of the followindpsidiaries.

(%)
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Name Location
Ownership ratio Ownership ratio

Okinawa Hitachi Capital Corporation Naha, Okinaws .000 100.00
Hitachi Capital Auto Lease Corporation Minato, Tokyo 51.00 51.00
Sekisui Leasing Co., Ltd. Osaka, Osaka 90.p0 90(00
Hitachi Capital Insurance Corporation Chiyoda, Tokyp 9.3B 79.36
Hitachi Capital Community Corporation Ayase, Kanagawa 100.00 100.00
Hitachi Capital Trust Corporation Minato, Tokyo 10D.0 100.00
Financial Bridge Corporation _Srgli(r;?)gawa, 90.00 100.00
Hitachi Green Energy Corporation Minato, Tokyo 1@0.( 100.00
Hitachi Wind Power Ltd. Minato, Tokyo 85.10 85.1D
Hitachi Sustainable Energy, Ltd. Hitachi, Ibaraki — 85.10
Hitachi Capital NBL Corporation Minato, Tokyo 100.00 100.00
Hitachi Capital Servicer Corporation Minato, Tokyo 01@ 100.00
Hitachi Capital Services Co., Ltd. Minato, Tokyo 1. 100.00
Hitachi Triple Win Corp. Minato, Tokyo 100.09 100.0p
gg:r';g; ;gﬁona' Credit Guarantee Minato, Tokyo 100.00 100.00
Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC Surrey, UK 100.00 100.0p
Hitachi Capital Vehicle Solutions Ltd. Berkshire, UK (11%%%%) (11%%%%)
HCIE Limited Dublin, Ireland (11%%%%) (11%%%%)
Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z 0.0. Warsaw, Poland (%%%%) (%%%%)
Hitachi Capital America Corp. Sgg”e“ic“t’ 100.00 100.00
Hitachi Capital Canada Corp. Ontario, Canada (11%%%%) (11%%%%)
CLE Canadian Leasing Enterprises Ltd. Quebec, Canada (11%%%%) (11%%%%)
CLE Leasing Enterprise Ltd. Ontario, Canada (11%%%%) (11%%%%)
Hitachi Capital (Hong Kong) Ltd. nong Kong. 100.00 100.00
Hitachi Capital Leasing (China) Co., Ltd. Beijing, China 90.00 90.00
Hitachi Capital Factoring (China) Co., Ltd. Shanghai, China 100.0d 100.00
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(%)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Name Location
Ownership ratio Ownership ratio
Hitachi Capital Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. Singapore 0 ()] 100.00
. . . . Bangkok, 73.99 73.99
Hitachi Capital (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Thailand (73.99) (73.99)
. . . . . 75.00 75.00
Hitachi Capital Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Penang, Malaysia (75.00) (75.00)
PT. Arthaasia Finance Jakarta, Indongsia 75.00 85.00
) ’ . (85.00)
. . . . . . 70.00 70.00
PT. Hitachi Capital Finance Indonesia Jakarta, led@n (70.00) (70.00)

(Notes)

1. Figures in parentheses below “Ownership ragptresent the percentage of indirect ownership witié total ownership.

2. In addition to the subsidiaries listed above,@roup also consolidates trusts used for the gzation of receivables.

28. Related party transactions

Significant transactions and balances of receibial payables between the Group and its relatédpare as follows.

(1) Parent company

Transactions with Hitachi, Ltd., the Group’s pareampany, are as follows:

(Thousands of

(Millions of yen) U.S.dollars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Related company deposit ¥72,121 ¥114,846 $1,016,336
Accounts receivable 31,447 21,755 192,522

(2) Companies that have the same parent company

Transactions with companies that have the samepenenpany, Hitachi, Ltd., are as follows.

(Thousands o

(Millions of yen) U.S.dollars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Related company deposits ¥492 ¥3,854 $34,106
Accounts receivable 195,378 141,417 1,251,477
Finance lease receivables 44,278 48,032 425,061
Accounts payable 26,942 18,610 164,690
Borrowings 98,578 89,760 794,336
(Thousands of
(Millions of yen} U.S.dollars)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 201 March 31, 201 March 31, 201
Revenues ¥19,296 ¥18,228 $161,309
(3) Management
Remuneration of the Company’s directors is as follows
(Thousands of
(Millions of yen) U.S.dollars)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 201 March 31, 201 March 31, 201
Egr:T;iji?seratlons for management (short-term emplgyee V456 ¥503 $4,451
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29. Commitments and contingencies

(1) Liability guarantee agreements
The Group provides guarantees for customer obtigatielated to sales of affiliated loans, etc. (maxn term up to fiscal

2042). The outstanding balance of the loan guagdigbilities is as follows.
(Thousands of
(Millions of yen, U.S.dollars
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
¥206,648 ¥137,414 $1,216,053

Loan guarantee liabilities
If a customer fails to make a payment for the al@n under the loan guarantee and the guaranteesia loss, the Group is

obligated to compensate such loss upon requestrform the payment.

The Group receives collateral for certain guaratigdslities.
At March 31, 2015 and 2016, these guarantee li@slamounted to ¥5,649 million and ¥3,611 milli&31,955 thousand),

respectively.

(2) Loan commitments
The Company provides loan commitments to its custe@ed associates.

The undrawn amount of the total loan commitmeiaisi$ollows.
(Thousands of
) U.S.dollars

(Millions of yen
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Total loan commitments ¥40,197 ¥40,000 $353,982
Amount utilized 5,156 5,000 44,247
Balance available 35,041 35,000 309,734
As loans under the loan commitment agreementsudijec to credit review of borrowers, the full ambomay not be utilized
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30. Subsequent event
(1) Business and capital alliance
On May 13, 2016, the Company agreed with Hitachd, [(tHitachi”), Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, InN¢MUFG”), The
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (“BTMU”) and Mitdishi UFJ Lease & Finance Company Limited (“MUL")rfeurther
consultations to carry out a business alliance (fBesiness Alliance”) between the Company and MULd ahe five
aforementioned companies, for the purpose of iieglisustainable growth and enhancing the provisibsolutions for the
Company, and entered into a Memorandum of Underitgrfthe “MoU”) .
Following the above, Hitachi, MUFG and MUL have emed into an agreement (the “Share Purchase Agre&nvehereby
Hitachi will transfer a portion of its shares iret@ompany to MUFG and MUL (the “Share Assignment”).
On May 13, 2016, the Company, MUFG and MUL have rexténto a capital alliance agreement which setsratters related
to the capital alliance between the three companies
After the the Share Assignment, Hitachi intendbedtl 33.40% of voting rights of the Company and wihtinue to cooperate

closely with the Company as an important financéngarof the Hitachi Group.

(a) Reasons for the Business Alliance, Etc.

The Company is not just a financial services comp@uyrently, as a “Social Values Creating Company,fciiprovides
new values to realize social development, the Compams to expand its global business, as well dmere sustainable
growth and the corporate value by contributingh® $ocial Innovation Business of Hitachi Group. Agsult, the Company
has agreed with MUL and Hitachi, MUFG, BTMU and Mi#garding the Business Alliances.

By strengthening the provision of solutions thatkeiéghe most of a unique form which combines thergfth between a
manufacturer and a financial group through the Bess Alliances, the Company will maximize furthesvgth of its business

and the value of stockholders.

(b) Particulars of the Business Alliance, Etc.
(i) Particulars of the Business Alliance betwees @ompany and MUL
In order to achieve mutual business growth and aratp value enhancement, the Company and MUL reaehed
agreement to promote specific consultations forphgose of strengthening existing business bycediely utilizing the
mutual business base, creating new business opjtetu by utilizing mutual know-how and businesswarks, and

developing new solutions to gather mutual strengths

(i) Particulars of the Business Alliance betweea filie companies
The Company, Hitachi, MUFG, BTMU and MUL have agreecconstruct an open financial platform pertaintoghe

field of infrastructure business and proceed wtbcific consultations.

(i) Particulars of changes to shares and capitance
The Company intends to acquire 26,678,000 MUL sh@@@8% of outstanding shares, 3.00% of votingtdgkhrough

the stock market.
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(2) Business Acquisition
The Group signed definitive documentation to aagtire healthcare and IT focused vendor financenkasiof Creekridge
Capital LLC (“Creekridge”) based in Minnesota throwgiyuisition of the company by Hitachi Capital AncarCorp. on May 11,
2016.

(a) Purpose of business acquisition

In the health care industry in the US, particulddgalthcare IT, which is a hybrid of Healthcare didsectors, is a
promising industry with highly anticipated growffhe Company’s decision to acquire Creekridge Capitai&ness platform
is supported by the firm’'s strong expertise in ficiag healthcare, IT, and other products in thedgerFinance space. The
Company intends to continue to promote its growthtsgy through the enhancement of its vendor fiaarapabilities for its

business partners, including the Hitachi group camigs.

(b) Outline of business acquisition
(i) Name of the company from which the businesaciguired
Creekridge Capital LLC

(ii) Description of business to be acquired
Vendor finance service for healthcare and IT

(i) Date of business transfer
June 6, 2016

(c) Consideration for acquisition and content

Consideration for business acquisition is a casimgay of US$90 million (¥9,933 million) and a comént consideration
of US$8 million (¥946 million). The contingent caderation of up to US$8 million (¥946 million) wibe paid if conditions
have been met such that operating assets a yeardateed a certain amount. The assessment presedacessary for
calculating the fair value of the contingent coesédion have yet to be completed as of this moment.
* Converted at 1 dollar = ¥110.

(d) Fair values of assets and liabilities of busi® be acquired and amount of goodwill
The assessment procedures necessary for calcuthgnfgir values of the assets and liabilitiesha business acquired on

the date of acquisition have yet to be completeaf éisis moment.

Financial Information Details
- 65 -



Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
Hitachi Capital Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hitachi Capital Corporation and its
consolidated subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31,
2016, and the consolidated statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Managements Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for designing and operating such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. The purpose of an audit of the consolidated financial statements is not to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, but in making these risk assessments the auditor considers internal
controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Hitachi Capital Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries as at March
31, 2016, and their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Convenience Translation

We have reviewed the translation of these consolidated financial statements into U.S. dollars, presented for the
convenience of readers, and, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
properly translated on the basis described in Note 2.

%&\g@\ﬁ%«w}l_l—)\@

June 27,2016
Tokyo, Japan



